
 
 
 
 
 
 

A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
D. PROCLAMATIONS  

 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. May 9, 2019 Study session minutes – FY20 Budget/CIP and Fair U City 
2. May 13, 2019 Study session minutes – EDRST Grant Guidelines and Crime Statistics 
 

F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 
1. Edmund Acosta (3rd term) and Joan Greco-Cohen (2nd term) are nominated for re-appointment to Library 

Board by Councilmember Tim Cusick. 
2. Sandra Hewitt is nominated to the Senor Commission as a fill in replacing Margie Diekemper’s vacated 

seat (11/25/2018) by Councilmember Steve McMahon. 
 

G. SWEARING IN to BOARDS & COMMISSIONS  
 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Zoning Text Amendment – Medical Marijuana (Bill 9385) 
 
J. CONSENT AGENDA – Vote Required 

1. Third Ward Community Booklet 
2. Police Vehicle Purchase (5) 
3. Brush Chipper Purchase 

   
K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
1. BILL 9370 - AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING A PORTION OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY 

CITY, MISSOURI, AS A REDEVELOPMENT AREA; APPROVING THE OLIVE BOULEVARD 
COMMERCIAL CORRIDOR AND RESIDENTIAL CONSERVATION REDEVELOPMENT PLAN; 
AND MAKING FINDINGS RELATED THERETO.   

 
2. BILL 9371 - AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT FOR 

REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 1 OF THE OLIVE BOULEVARD COMMERCIAL 
CORRIDOR AND RESIDENTIAL CONSERVATION REDEVELOPMENT AREA; ADOPTING 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS BY CITY OFFICIALS.   

  

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 

 6801 Delmar Blvd. 
University City, Missouri 63130 

Tuesday, May 28, 2019  
6:30 p.m. 



3. BILL 9372 – AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT FOR 
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 2 OF THE OLIVE BOULEVARD COMMERCIAL 
CORRIDOR AND RESIDENTIAL CONSERVATION REDEVELOPMENT AREA; ADOPTING 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS BY CITY OFFICIALS 

 
4. BILL 9373 - AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT FOR 

REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 3 OF THE OLIVE BOULEVARD COMMERCIAL 
CORRIDOR AND RESIDENTIAL CONSERVATION REDEVELOPMENT AREA; ADOPTING 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS BY CITY OFFICIALS.   

 
5. BILL 9379 - AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND 

DISTRICT PROJECT AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE OLIVE BOULEVARD 
COMMERCIAL CORRIDOR AND RESIDENTIAL CONSERVATION REDEVELOPMENT PLAN.   

 
6. BILL 9385 –  AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 400 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF 

THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, RELATING TO ZONING, BY AMENDING SECTIONS 
400.030; 400.510; 400.570; 400.620; 400.630 AND ADDING DIVISION 15 TO ARTICLE V OF 
CHAPTER 400 (ZONING CODE) THEREOF, RELATING TO MEDICAL MARIJUANA 
REGULATIONS; CONTAINING A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND PROVIDING A PENALTY. 

 
7. BILL 9386 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SCHEDULE III, TABLE III-B OF THE TRAFFIC 

CODE RELATING TO TWO-HOUR PARKING ZONES. (7300 Forsyth Blvd.) 
 

 
M. NEW BUSINESS 

RESOLUTIONS 
 
BILLS 
 

N. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
O. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
Q.  Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) legal 

actions, causes of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any 
confidential or privileged communications between a public governmental body or its 
representatives or attorneys and (3) Hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting of particular 
employees by a public governmental body when personal information about the employee is 
discussed or recorded, and (13) Individually identifiable personnel records, performance 
ratings or records pertaining to employees.  

 
R. ADJOURNMENT  



Page 1 of 19 
 

STUDY SESSION 
OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL 

5th Floor of City Hall 
6801 Delmar 
May 9, 2019 

 
AGENDA 
Requested by the City Manager 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
The City Council Study Session was held in Council Chambers on the fifth floor of City 
Hall, on Thursday, May 9, 2019.  Mayor Terry Crow called the Study Session to order 
at 6:00 p.m.  
 
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present: 
 

  Councilmember Steven McMahon; (arrived at 6:10) 
  Councilmember Paulette Carr 
  Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
  Councilmember Tim Cusick 
  Councilmember Stacy Clay; (arrived at 6:01) 
   Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson; (via teleconference) 
  

Also in attendance was City Manager, Gregory Rose, and City Attorney, John F. 
Mulligan Jr. 

 
2. FAIR U CITY PROPOSAL 

Mr. Rose stated in his mind, this is a perfect analogy of what Fair U City's proposal 
illustrates; a cash transfer that helps to improve the Foundation's bottom line.  Let's 
say you want to go on vacation, but you have no money to pay for that vacation.  So 
you persuade a friend to not only give you $2,000 to cover the cost of that vacation but 
to provide you with transportation to and from the airport.  When they arrive to take 
you to the airport you have one piece of luggage.  But when they return to pick you up 
from the airport you now have five pieces of luggage.  Curious about the extra 
luggage, your friend asks "What's in the other four pieces of luggage?"  Your response 
is that you spent $2,000 on gifts for your family.  No doubt that friend is thinking; if you 
had $2,000 to buy gifts, why did you need me to cover the cost of your vacation?   
 
 This next scenario describes the central issue associated with this proposal, 
which Fair U City refers to as in-kind services; a form of specific goods and services 
that a recipient gets for free.  When your friend takes you to the airport you ask, "How 
much do I owe you?"  The friend responds since I was already making a trip to take 
my sister to the airport you don't owe me anything.  That's a true example of in-kind 
service.  However, when your friend picks you up from the airport and you ask, "How 
much do I owe you," and they inform you that their sole purpose for coming to the 
airport this time was to pick you up, it now becomes a direct service that your friend 
has provided to you.  Except for this event, there would be no need for City staff to 
work overtime setting up equipment, breaking down equipment, or providing security 
for fair participants.  Therefore, Fair U City's request for this assistance falls under the 
category of direct rather than in-kind services or donations.   E - 1 - 1



Page 2 of 19 
 

 
 Mr. Rose stated he has no interest in vilifying the volunteers that work very hard 
to provide this amenity to the residents of U City because in their hearts they believe 
what they are doing is in the best interest of this community.  He simply believes that 
what has occurred over time is that they have been trying to do the right thing, the 
wrong way.   
 
Mr. Rose provided the following timeline of events: 

• Feb 13 – Staff met with Fair U City Representatives and 
discussed the need to provide the City with a contract in order to 
utilize taxpayer dollars to subsidize their event.    

• Feb 26 – A follow-up email was sent to Fair U City which included the 
requirement of appearing before the Park Commission at their meeting on 
March 19th to make a request to reserve the park.  The Park Commission was 
informed of this upcoming event and Fair U City was placed on their agenda. 

• March 19 – The Park Commission held their meeting but representatives from 
Fair U City failed to attend.   

• April 16 - Fair U City attended the Park Commission's meeting and made a 
request to reserve the park.  A follow-up meeting was scheduled for May 1st to 
review Fair U City's contract.  (This is the first time representatives provided any 
dialogue specific to the City's request.) 

• May 1 – Representatives from Fair U City failed to appear at the meeting with 
staff to review their proposed contract. 

 
Terms of the Proposed Contract: 

 Fair U City Must Provide Insurance 
 Fair U City Must Obtain Proper Permits 
 Fair U City Must Provide Refundable Deposit in the amount of $5,459.00 for 

use of the Park; (the full deposit will be refunded if no damage is found) 
 Prior to the award of Scholarships Fair U City Must Pay $5,220.00 to the City 

For Use of Park 
 Prior to the award of Scholarships Fair U City Must Pay $16,614.00 for the use 

of City Services 
 If the fair does not generate enough money to cover these costs all expenses 

will be waived after 5 years. 
 
Legal Considerations: 

 Funding For City Services Have Not Been Budgeted; ($16,614.00).  Staff has 
no authority to pay for overtime to service this event, especially with respect to 
public safety. 

 A Waiver of Park Fees Has Not Been Approved by the Mayor and Council 
 
Mr. Rose stated his belief is that the fair is an important amenity for the City that should be 
continued and that there is an opportunity for Fair U City to resume in 2020.  

E - 1 - 2



Page 3 of 19 
 

 
Recommendations: 

 Authorize City Staff to Evaluate Hosting a Community Fair In FY2020 and 
provide Council with Reports on the Following Factors: 
 Costs 
 Dates 
 Potential Partnerships 
 Location 
 Determination on whether this event qualifies as "Tourism" and if the use of 

EDRST funds would be appropriate. 
 

Mr. Rose then read the following statement into the record:  "Each day staff endeavors to 
restore your faith and confidence, and that of the public, in our government.  You see 
there is a difference between government and governance.  We put out the fires.  We 
protect residents.  We fill potholes.  We provide recreational activities and soon will even 
provide you with a ride to the hospital.  That is government and staff is the face of 
government.   
 Governance is what you do.  You're responsible as a Council.  You make policy 
decisions about things such as zoning, the vision of the City, and how limited taxpayer 
dollars are spent.  That is not an administrative role that is a Council role.  So that is why 
this item was coming before you.  The challenges that you and the public have had with 
our government was long before me and they are well documented.  But you can be 
assured that this government will conduct ourselves in a manner that is above reproach 
and consistent with our core values of integrity, customer service, accountability, and 
empowerment.  And that I will hold true to the International City/County Managers 
Association's Code of Ethics, which I have shared with each of you." 
 
Councilmember Clay thanked Mr. Rose for his presentation, however, he would like to be 
sure that he understood all of the dynamics.  What this appears to involve are two issues; 
the execution of the fair itself and the award of scholarships.  And based on the 
knowledge obtained from folks associated with the fair, as well as the lack of any 
evidence that would necessarily refute that information, execution of the fair itself, could 
have continued.  So is it your understanding, Mr. Rose that the real potential for harm 
would have come from the fair's inability to generate the requisite amount of profit needed 
to award the scholarships?   Mr. Rose stated based on the way the proposed contract is 
structured that would be correct.   
 
Councilmember Hales stated since everyone was probably caught off guard when this 
news came out on Monday, he would like to thank the City Manager for providing the 
contract, timeline, and email documentation associated with this issue on the City's 
website.  And he has no doubt, that once all of this information made its way out to the 
public that it changed the tone of the discussions being held on social media.    

E - 1 - 3



Page 4 of 19 
 

He stated that he also appreciates this administration's efforts to implement procedures 
that encourage consistency because that has been a greatly needed standard.   
 Councilmember Hales stated he believes all of his colleagues recognize the 
importance of community events that showcase the very best of U City.  So if there is a 
consensus, he would like to request that the City Manager be allowed to proceed with his 
recommendation to explore the development of a fair designed to maximize the inclusivity 
of this community with music events and possibly the incorporation of something new, like 
the Taste of U City, and come back to Council with a report within the next 90 to 100 
days. 
 
Mr. Rose stated he would make a commitment on behalf of the Director of Parks 
Recreation and Forestry, and his staff, to explore all of the options and report back to 
Council within the next 90 to 100 days. 
 
For the record, Mayor Crow stated it appears as though Council is in agreement with the 
City Manager's approach to move forward with the exploration of a community event for 
FY2020.     
 
 
3. PROPOSED FY20 OPERATING BUDGET 
 (Posted on the City’s website at https://www.ucitymo.org/455/Budget-Financial-
 Reports) 
  
FY20-FY24 Capital Improvement Budget 
The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a summary of University City’s capital investments 
for the next 5 years. The first year of the CIP is included in the FY2020 Annual Operating 
Budget and is considered the Capital Budget.  
 
CIPs are important to establish because they help cities minimize some of the challenges 
associated with managing the work performed by its employees and planned 
improvements being executed by public utilities on the city's streets and right-of-ways.   
 
Mr. Rose stated that the following priorities were established through last year's budget 
process. 
 
Priorities 
Mr. Rose stated that the following priorities were established through last year's budget 
process. 
 

 Economic Development 
 Public Safety 
 Encourage High-Quality Growth 
 Prudent Fiscal Management 
 Infrastructure 
 Community Quality of Life Amenities 
 Employees 

 E - 1 - 4

https://www.ucitymo.org/455/Budget-Financial-Reports
https://www.ucitymo.org/455/Budget-Financial-Reports


Page 5 of 19 
 

CIP Summary:  FY20 - FY24 
The total amount allocated to City departments for the 5 year period is $25, 818,343. 
 

 Police Department    ($5,066,000) 
 Fire Departments    ($750,000) 
 Parks, Recreation, and Forestry  ($4,532,000) 
 Public Works Department   ($14,790,343) 
 Planning & Development   ($100,000) 
 Golf Course     ($580,000) 

 
Highlights:  Fire Department 

 FY2020 - Purchase of a second ambulance ($250,000)  
 FY2022 - Replacement of the Pumper Truck; (Total cost equals $500,000; 

allocations of $250,000 to be made in FY2021 and FY2022)  
 
Highlights:  Parks, Recreation & Forestry 

 FY2020-FY24 - Emerald Ash Borer Tree Replacement ($75,000)  
 FY2020 - Painting of Centennial Commons ($114,000)  
 FY2020 - Heman Park Pool Improvements ($250,000)  
 FY2020 - Replacement of Exercise Equipment ($20,000) and Short Game Practice 

Area ($30,000) 
 FY2021 - Ruth Golf Course Lighting Installation ($130,000; staff will be asked to 

take a close look at the feasibility of these lights.) 
 
Highlights:  Police Department  

 FY2022 - Construction of New Police Station ($4,700,000) 
 FY2020 - Purchase of Five Police Cars ($114,000)  
 FY2020 - License Plate Readers ($45,000)  
 FY2020 - Mobile Date Terminals ($106,000)  
 FY2020 - Mobile Gunshot Detection System ($75,000)  

 
Highlights:  Planning & Development 

 FY2020 - Purchase of Five Alternative Fuel Vehicles ($100,000; a partnership with 
Ameren) 

 
Highlights:  Public Works 

 FY2020-FY24 - Solid Waste Grant Match ($20,000)  
 FY2020-FY22 - Parking Meter Replacement Program ($50,000)  
 FY2020-FY24 - Enhanced Street Lighting Program to Reduce Crime ($75,000)  
 FY2020-FY24 - ADA Curb/Ramp Design and Construction ($50,000)  
 FY2020-FY24 - Curb and Sidewalk Replacement ($400,000)  
 FY2020-24 - Street Maintenance ($700,000)  
 FY2020-FY24 - City Facility Improvements ($500,000)  
 FY2020 - City Wide Energy Efficiency Master Plan ($30,000)  
 FY2020 - Canton Avenue Fence Improvements ($65,000)  
 FY2020 - Cost Accounting Software for Capital Projects ($25,000)  

 

E - 1 - 5



Page 6 of 19 
 

Next Steps: 
 First Year of CIP becomes Capital Budget 
 Public Hearing on Annual Operating Proposed Budget 
 Council Budget Study Sessions 
 Consideration of Proposed Capital Improvement Program and Proposed FY20 

Annual Operating Budget  
 
Councilmember Cusick stated based on the total price indicated for the purchase of five 
police cars is it correct to assume that each car would only cost around $22,000? Police 
Chief, Larry Hampton stated in an effort to reduce costs, the Department is looking at 
purchasing Dodge Chargers, but the actual cost of each vehicle will not be determined 
until the State bid is released for FY2020.  Councilmember Cusick asked if the total cost 
included the accessories needed to equip these cars for use as a police vehicle?  Chief 
Hampton stated the price does not include any special equipment, although the 
Department has already purchased cameras and GPS systems. 
 
Councilmember Carr questioned whether any funding would be allocated for stormwater?  
Mr. Rose stated the reason stormwater had not been included in the CIP is because of 
the current work being performed by the Task Force to develop a Stormwater Master 
Plan.  Once that plan is in place, staff will have a better idea of the cost and that 
information will be brought before Council in the form of an amendment to the budget. 
 
Councilmember Clay stated while he certainly understands the urgency of constructing a 
second police station, he has some concerns from a process perspective.  As the City 
thinks about a police station and where it should be housed, his concerns are based on 
two pending studies that could have a major impact on this decision; the study looking at 
the feasibility of the Annex, and the City-Wide Space Needs Study depicted on page 35 of 
the Proposed Budget, slated for FY2020.  Councilmember Clay stated in his opinion, the 
construction of a police station is a generational decision.  Therefore, making this type of 
a decision without understanding all the needs; specifically, as they relate to the City's 
Municipal Plaza, which he thinks the Space Study would yield, or knowing the results of 
the Annex study, does not necessarily put the City in the right planning position.  So his 
thinking is that any initial evaluations about this facility should be placed on hold until both 
studies have been completed and the results are thoroughly analyzed.  Mr. Rose stated 
when the Proposed Budget was prepared, the City was faced with the proposal from 
Better Together and all the uncertainties associated with what would occur going forward.  
So the Space Needs Study was pushed back to FY2020 because staff did not want to 
proceed until they had a better understanding of the impacts this proposal would have on 
the City's operations.  Now that those concerns have been minimized, staff can move 
forward with both studies; which he is of the same opinion, will help to identify the 
appropriate use for all facilitaties.  So in order to make a more informed decision about the 
location, Council's desire might be to suspend any considerations about the police station 
until FY2022, or until all studies have been completed.  But in any event, he will likely be 
asking Council for an amendment to the budget in order to bring the Space Needs Study 
forward.  
 Councilmember Clay expressed his appreciation for the City Manager's posture.  
The City has buildings that it currently does not know what to do with and his belief is that 
the Space Needs Study will play a significant role in this administration's ability to think 
comprehensively about how to develop a plan that will address all of these issues.  
 E - 1 - 6



Page 7 of 19 
 

Councilmember McMahon asked Mr. Rose whether he had taken any of the priorities 
submitted by the Parks and Recreation Commission into account when preparing the CIP, 
and if so, which of staff's priorities are directly correlated to that submission?  Mr. Rose 
stated with the exception of the tree replacement, his belief is that all of the projects 
identified by Parks and Recreation were included. However, they may not be listed in the 
same priority that was recommended by the Commission since the completion of some 
projects will be contingent upon staff's ability to secure the necessary funding from grants.  
Mr. Rose stated staff will also be seeking grants for road improvements so there might be 
a little bit of competition for these funds.  But long story short, Council will be asked to 
amend the budget to reflect the proceeds from any successful grant applications.   
 
FY2019-FY2020 Proposed Annual Operating Budget 
 
Priorities 
The following priorities were established through last year's budget process. 
 

 Economic Development 
 Public Safety 
 Encourage High-Quality Growth 
 Prudent Fiscal Management 
 Infrastructure 
 Community Quality of Life Amenities 
 Employees  
 

E - 1 - 7



Page 8 of 19 
 

Organizational Structure 
Mr. Rose stated to ensure there are no inherent conflicts of interest and eliminate the 
perception that all requests may not be handled in the order they are received, he is 
recommending that Fleet Operations; a support operation for the entire organization, is 
moved from Public Works to Human Resources.  There is always an opportunity to 
improve the City's operations, and this is one that staff will be doing a very deep dive into 
next year.  
 
 

 
 
 

E - 1 - 8



Page 9 of 19 
 

Residential Property Tax Bill 
Although U City has experienced a slight reduction in its property tax rate, the impact on 
residential tax bills will not be disclosed for several months. 
 

Description Rate/$100 % of Tax Bill
State of Missouri 0.0300             0.4%
St. Louis County 0.4890             5.9%
Community College 0.2129             2.6%
Special School District 1.1980             14.6%
Metro Zoo 0.2724             3.3%
University City School District 4.8726             59.4%
City of University City 0.6890             8.4%
Library 0.2450             3.0%
Miscellaneous 0.2010             2.4%
          Total 8.2099$           100.0%

 
 
 
Example of Residential Property Tax Bill 
House Market Value = $200,000 
Assessed Value = $38,000; (19% of Market Value) 
 

Description Amount % of Tax Bill
State of Missouri 12$                 0.4%
St. Louis County 184                 5.9%
Community College 81                   2.6%
Special School District 456                 14.6%
Metro Zoo 103                 3.3%
University City School District 1,853               59.4%
City of University City 262                 8.4%
Library 94                   3.0%
Miscellaneous 75                   2.4%
          Total 3,120$             100.0%

Tax Bill = 38,000 x 8.2099 / 100 = $3,120

 

E - 1 - 9



Page 10 of 19 
 

Highlights - FY2020 
 Funds In-House EMS Services 
 Increases Contributions to Uniform Pension Plan; (although the Actuarial Study 

recommended $417,000; and that is the figure currently being utilized to make 
contributions, some of the numbers may change as staff continues their review of 
this report.  Any necessary amendments will be made as a part of the budget 
approval process.)   

 Funds Internal Management of Parking Garage; (an under-performing asset that 
has the potential to produce increased revenue if the contract with St. Louis 
Parking is managed more efficiently)  

 Restructures Fleet Operations 
 Same or Reduced Tax Rate 
 Far exceeds the 17% fund balance for General Fund  
 Funds Capital Budget 
 No COLA Recommendations; (Council recently approved the Class & 

Compensation Study to ensure that U City was competitive in the marketplace.  A 
cost-of-living allowance will likely be recommended next year in order to maintain 
that status.)   

 Restructures Salary Allocation in Solid Waste, Parking Garage, and Golf Course; 
(to eliminate any confusion caused by the frequent need to transfer monies, some 
salaries were removed from the general fund and placed in the appropriate 
category) 

 Funds In-House Pool Management 
 
Mayor Crow asked Mr. Rose for the percentage of the current Pension Fund balance?  
Mr. Rose stated the recommended percentage is 37%.   
 
All Funds Summary - Governmental Funds 
Total Revenues             $32,007,142 
Total Expenditures      $30,706,871 
Ending Fund Balance   $17,168,876  
 

E - 1 - 10



Page 11 of 19 
 

Revenue Sources - All Funds 

Amount Percentage
Property Taxes 6,512,139$       15.9%
Sales & Use Tax 13,049,306       31.8%
Intergovernmental 3,467,290          8.5%
Grants 934,000             2.3%
License 709,000             1.7%
Gross Receipts Tax 6,310,000          15.4%
Inspection Fees and Permits 866,200             2.1%
Charges for Services 4,672,282          11.4%
Parks and Recreation Fees 741,000             1.8%
Municipal Court and Parking 918,400             2.2%
Interest 32,706               0.1%
Miscellaneous Revenue 2,779,200          6.8%

     Total Revenue 40,991,523$     100.0%
 

 
 
 
Revenue Sources - Percentages 
 

 

E - 1 - 11



Page 12 of 19 
 

General Fund - Revenue Sources 
U City's dependence on revenue has shifted from being heavily reliant on the receipt of 
property taxes, to sales and use taxes.  Therefore, the need to diversify this economy is a 
serious issue.   
 

Amount Percentage
Property Taxes 3,524,700$        13.7%
Sales & Use Tax 6,867,000          26.7%
Intergovernmental 3,452,300          13.4%
License 679,000             2.6%
Gross Receipts Tax 6,310,000          24.5%
Inspection Fees and Permits 866,200             3.4%
Charges for Services 959,700             3.7%
Parks and Recreation Fees 741,000             2.9%
Municipal Court and Parking 713,000             2.8%
Interest 31,336               0.1%
Miscellaneous Revenue 1,570,460          6.1%

     Total Revenue 25,714,696$      100.0%  
 
 
 
General Fund Revenue Sources - Percentages 
 

 E - 1 - 12



Page 13 of 19 
 

General Fund - Transfers In 
• The biggest portion of the Public Safety Fund goes to cover the cost of salary 

increases for public safety  
• Parks & Stormwater reflects the loan made to the Public Safety Fund for the police 

station of $6 million dollars 
• The Golf Course covers some of the capital costs for police   
• The remaining funds reflect transfers solely related to the repayment of loans from 

the general fund 
 

Public Safety Fund 
Parks & Stormwater 
Golf Course 
Parking Garage 
Sewer Lateral 
Total Transfers in  

 

$1,264,700 
$41,280 
$53,220 
$53,220 
$57,240 

$1,469,660 

 
General Fund - Transfers Out 
Each year staff will be asked to evaluate its fleet and determine what vehicles need to be 
purchased.  Vehicles will be replaced on an as-needed basis and purchased out of the 
department they service in order to gain a better understanding of the actual costs 
associated with running each department.  Only monies needed to cover the operating 
costs of a department will be transferred out of the general fund.   
 
 Fleet Internal Service Fund    $1,011,900 
       Total Transfers out               $1,011,900  
 
General Fund Expenditures 

Expenditure by Department Amount Percentage
Legislative 221,461$               0.9%
City Manager's Office 624,850                 2.5%
Communications 258,720                 1.0%
Human Resources 1,325,980              5.3%
Information Technology 623,940                 2.5%
Finance 697,770                 2.8%
Municipal Court 348,720                 1.4%
Police 9,031,062              36.1%
Fire 4,917,849              19.6%
Planning &  Development 1,529,517              6.1%
Park Recreation & Forestry 2,823,387              11.3%
Public Works 2,628,254              10.5%
Debt Service 5,200                     0.0%

     Total Expenditure 25,036,710$          100.0%  
 

E - 1 - 13



Page 14 of 19 
 

General Fund Expenditures - Percentages 
 

 
 
General Fund Summary 
Although there is roughly a $600,000 difference in the ending fund balance, no 
recommendation has been made for the use of those funds until greater certainty has 
been determined regarding the exact amount needed for both Pension Fund Plans.  
 
Total Revenues           $25,714,696  
Total Expenditures    $25,036,710  
Ending Fund Balance    $  8,854,105  
 
Highlights - City Manager's Office 

 Places Fleet Operations under Human Resources 
 Moves ROARS Publication In-House under Communications 
 Moves Parking Garage Management under Economic Development 
 Funds Computer Replacements, Network Upgrades, and Software Upgrades that 

fall under Communications  
 
Highlights - Finance Department 

 Maintaining Current Service Levels 
 
Highlights - Municipal Court 

 Maintaining Current Service Levels  
 
Highlights - Police Department 

  Gun Shoot Detection Software 
  Vehicle Replacement 
  MDT’s 
  License Plate Readers  

 E - 1 - 14



Page 15 of 19 
 

Highlights - Fire Department 
 In-House EMS 
 Purchase of an Ambulance 
 Addition of a Part-Time Clerk 

 
Highlights - Public Works 

 $700,000 for Street Improvements 
 $400,000 for Sidewalk and Curb Improvements 
 $460,000 for Sewer Lateral Repairs 
 Absorbs Increase of Landfill Costs 
 Absorbs Recycling Costs 

 
Highlights - Planning & Development 

 Funds Five Alternative Fuel Vehicles for Code Enforcement with GPS; (for use by 
Code Enforcement Officers who currently drive their own vehicles) 

 
Highlights - Parks, Recreation & Forestry 

  In-House Pool Management 
  Evaluation of Green Fees for Possible Increase; (fees have not been increased in 

a very long time, and as a result of last year's deficit, Council loaned this fund 
$500,000.)  

 
Other Funds 
Summary - Public Safety Sales Tax Funds 
Total Revenues             $1,700,000  
Total Expenditures       $2,478,770  
Ending Fund Balance    $5,621,930  
 
Summary - Capital Improvement Fund  
Some of the projects planned for this year, i.e., facility improvements, may not come to 
fruition and result in a decrease of the total expenditures. 
 
Total Revenues             $2,419,000  
Total Expenditures      $3,076,828  
Ending Fund Balance      $   273,840  
 
Summary - Park & Stormwater Fund 
 
Total Revenues             $1,396,000  
Total Expenditures       $1,192,985  
Ending Fund Balance      $   350,929  
 
Summary - EDRST Fund 
The ending fund balance will be held in abeyance until the EDRST Board makes its 
recommendations to Council on how the funds should be spent.    
 
Total Revenues              $   667,306  
Total Expenditures          $   134,742  
Ending Fund Balance   $1,768,564  

E - 1 - 15



Page 16 of 19 
 

 
$5,500 ITN Program 
Staff will provide Council with a report on the effectiveness of this program. 
 
LSBD FY2020 Proposed Budget 
The requirement to develop a strategic plan does not appear to be reflected in the budget 
and since there could possibly be other omissions, staff anticipates that further 
discussions may be needed.    
 
On the Horizon 

 Completion of Solid Waste Rate Study; (once the study is complete a 
recommendation will be made for the creation of a Task Force to assist staff and 
the consultant; verify the contents of the report, and draft a recommendation to 
Council.   No rate increase is anticipated until FY2021 or 2020.) 

 Rate Review of the Golf Course 
 Better Together; (status unknown) 
 Industrial Park Expansion Strategy & Recommendation; (an opportunity to diversify 

the City's economy) 
 Olive / I-170 Development; (staff anticipates presenting this proposal for Council's 

consideration in the very near future)   
 
 
Mr. Rose addressed the following questions received via email: 
 
Q. Compared to previous years, what amount is being allocated to fund the Arts & 
Letters Program this year? 
A. This year's allocation; per the Commission's request is $20,000, and the same amount 
is being proposed for FY2020.  Mr. Rose noted that he had no data related to previous 
years. 
 
Q. What is the potential for hiring an Executive Director for the Loop Special 
Business District? 
A. Mr. Rose stated he is currently working to coordinate a strategic planning session this 
summer with the Mayor and Council, so the Executive Director, as well as, the City's 
vision for The Loop; the status of the CID, and what that means for the Loop Special 
Business District, are some of the items that might be discussed. 
 
Q. What are some of the details associated with the Non-Uniform Pension Fund? 
A. Staff is currently conducting an actuarial study for both the Non-Uniform and Uniform 
Pension Fund.  Additional details and a recommendation on the appropriate level of 
funding, as well as the financial projections and revenues from the SAFER Grant, should 
be available by next week.   This three-year grant used to cover salaries and benefits is 
funded at 75 percent for the first two years, and 25 percent in year three.   
 
Mr. Rose asked Councilmember Clay if the information he had provided was sufficient?  
Councilmember Clay stated in terms of the details, he had a template that he would share 
with Mr. Rose, illustrating the type of information he is looking for.  So he would follow up 
on this discussion after he has had a chance to review it.   
 

E - 1 - 16



Page 17 of 19 
 

Q. What, if any public hearings will be held to discuss the budget? 
A. These are the next steps being recommended for the City's budget process:   

• June 10th - Council to hold an official public hearing on the budget 
• June 17th - Second Study Session for Council 
• June 24th - Proposed budget presented to Council for adoption 

 
Councilmember Clay asked if the public hearing would be held at City Hall?  Mr. Rose 
stated that it would be.  Councilmember Clay stated he had contemplated a meeting 
outside of City Hall that would extend this discussion out into the community, so the 
Community Center would be an ideal location.  Mr. Rose stated the second Study Session 
provides Council with a better idea of what the actual budget will look like.  So if Council's 
desire is to have an additional meeting he would recommend that it be held on June 20th, 
after the second Study Session has been conducted.    
 
Mayor Crow posed the following questions:  
 
Q. Is there an opportunity to have snippets of these meetings made available to the public 
through the use of technology in order to achieve a broader audience?   
A. Mr. Rose stated he would work with the Director of Communications to see what 
process could be utilized to expand the public's awareness, particularly with respect to 
some of the videos highlighting the Police Department, Planning & Development, and the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Q. At some point in time, Mr. Rose, could you or Chief Hampton provide me with the 
 number of vacancies in the Police Department, how they are being addressed, and 
 any impact the filling of these vacancies might have on the budget process?   
  
Q Mr. Rose, could you provide me with an update or a timeline regarding the 
 efforts being made to bring EMS in-house?   
A. Mr. Rose stated if you were to ask Chief Hinson, he would tell you that this service 
 will be ready in August, but based on his tendency to be more conservative, he would 
 like to say November.  Nevertheless, at this point, they are definitely shooting for 
 August. 
 
Q. Mayor Crow stated on page 142, it looks like fees in the Parks Department have  gone 
down in some categories and that others have been re-categorized.  So again, while it 
does not have to be today, could you provide me with details on the decrease from 
$37,000 to $27,000; the increase of $75,000; which of those numbers are relevant to the 
actuary, lawyer or fund manager, and why there was roughly a 216 percent increase in 
personnel?  
 
Q. Mr. Rose, in previous discussions you talked about conducting a Citizen's  Satisfaction 
Survey.  Can you tell me when you anticipate implementing that  survey?   
A. Mr. Rose stated the survey has been budgeted for this fiscal year and he will be 
 meeting with the Director of Communications to make a decision on what company 
 will be used to administer the process.  So, it will be initiated this summer and 
 hopefully concluded within three months. 
 

E - 1 - 17



Page 18 of 19 
 

Q. Has there been enough time since the implementation of the new fee structure for 
 the Sewer Lateral Program to determine its effectiveness?  
A. Mr. Rose stated most of the current projects were already in the hopper prior to the 
 change in policy; however, he does think they will be able to have a better sense of 
 what impact the fee structure will have within the next 60 days.   
 
Councilmember Cusick asked Mr. Rose if any consideration had been given to MSD's 
proposal to locate their storage tanks in Heman Park when the $250,000 was allocated for 
improvements?  Mr. Rose stated although his belief is that a vast majority of the 
improvements are associated with the pool, no work will be started until they know exactly 
what MSD is planning to do.   
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated he noticed that the money allocated for the police 
station has gone from $7 million dollars to $4.7 million dollars, and would like a detailed 
accounting of what has happened to those funds allocated for public safety?  He stated 
while he is in agreement with Stacy's position about construction of the police station, his 
hope is that something will be done sooner rather than later to prevent these funds from 
dwindling down any further.  Mr. Rose stated while he could certainly provide him with a 
written breakdown of expenditures related to the fund balance; which was $6 million 
dollars when he came on board, $1.3 million was allocated for the design and analysis of 
the Annex, and a portion was used to purchase the property that the current police facility 
is located on; rather than continuing to lease it in perpetuity with nothing to show at the 
end. 
 Councilmember Smotherson stated some of the purchases being recommended; 
like the five alternative fuel vehicles have caused him some concern, especially since it 
could have a huge impact on the funding needed to improve the City's streets.  He stated 
there are some streets in the 3rd Ward that are in desperate need of repair, so to save 
costs, perhaps these officers could be equipped with tablets that have a GPS system.  Mr. 
Rose stated although he is recommending that the practice of the City's Code 
Enforcement Officers driving their own vehicles be discontinued, this is a policy decision 
that will have to be made by the Mayor and Council.  And while he would agree that 
cheaper vehicles could be purchased, he thinks it is important for the City to do as much 
as it can to be effective in its operations, and at the same time, do its part to minimize our 
particular carbon footprint.  The other reasons behind maintaining the existing level of 
funding for streets was one; if Better Together had been successful, it would have 
eliminated the City's Public Works Department, and two, there was a need to ensure that 
the City had the appropriate staffing levels to complete all of the scheduled repairs.   
 If you will recall, this is the final year of a significant debt that was being paid out of 
the general fund so there will be an opportunity to create a multi-year Street Improvement 
Plan.  Mr. Rose stated the first step is to make an analysis of the number of streets that 
can be repaired with the City's current staff, and then determine the impact that adding 
additional streets might have.  That analysis is scheduled to occur in FY2020.   
 Councilmember Smotherson stated another recommendation was to spend $95,000 to 
purchase gunshot detection software but has anyone conducted research to determine 
whether this software is even going to be effective for U City?  Chief Hampton stated this 
is going to be a pilot program offered by V-5 that will allow his Department to test the 
effectiveness before any money is exchanged. Unlike the original Shot Spotter Program, 
this is a portable solar system with a Wi-Fi feed that has been designed for smaller 
municipalities who cannot afford to purchase the Shot Spotter.   

E - 1 - 18



Page 19 of 19 
 

Chief Hampton stated he believes this tool will provide officers with the ability to make 
more arrests, be a deterrent to crime, and just today he learned that the City's 
participation in this pilot could lead to additional opportunities through the creation of 
municipal and business partnerships. 
 
Councilmember Clay asked if there was a reason for maintaining a 37 percent fund 
balance in the Pension Fund when the policy only recommends 17 percent?  Mr. Rose 
stated he believes the reference to 17 percent represents the minimum amount you can 
maintain in the fund balance, which in his opinion is too low.  In the past, the City relied 
heavily on property taxes to generate revenue, which was a much more stable form of 
income.  But today, that reliance has shifted to sales taxes or taxes that are distributed by 
the State, such as a fuel tax.  So, if there is a downturn in the economy, the City will have 
to have enough funds in reserve to continue operating and providing an adequate level of 
service until the economy recovers.  And while he is hopeful that a recession is nowhere 
in the near future, prudent management requires cities to be prepared in the event that 
something like that does happen.  He stated while the fund balance could be lower; and 
he will have a clearer picture of what the actual percentage should be once staff has 
completed their study, more than likely his recommendation; at least for the uniform fund, 
is going to include the suggestion to make additional contributions.   
 
Mayor Crow stated the 17 percent fund balance was proposed many years ago by Bob 
Wagner, and he thinks a large part of the fund balance increases are due to the number 
of settlements ascertained by Mr. Mulligan and his associates over the past decade.  
 
4. Roll-Call vote to go into a Closed Council Session according to RSMo 610.021:  

(1) Legal actions, causes of action or litigation involving a public governmental 
body and any confidential or privileged communications between a public 
governmental body or its representatives and its attorneys. 

Councilmember Hales moved to go into a Closed Session, it was seconded by 
Councilmember Carr. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Carr, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, 
Councilmember Cusick, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Smotherson, and Mayor 
Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 
5. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Crow thanked everyone for their attendance and closed the Study Session at 
7:17 p.m. to go into a Closed Session on the second floor.  The Closed Session 
reconvened in an open session at 8:10 p.m. and was adjourned.     
 
 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 

E - 1 - 19



E - 1 - 20



 

Page 1 of 10 
 

STUDY SESSION 
OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL 

5th Floor of City Hall 
6801 Delmar 
May 13, 2019 

AGENDA 
Requested by the City Manager 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
The City Council Study Session was held in Council Chambers on the fifth floor of City Hall, 
on Monday, May 13, 2019.  In Mayor Crow's absence, Mayor Pro Tem, Paulette Carr called 
the Study Session to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
In addition to the Mayor Pro Tem, the following members of Council were present: 

 
   Councilmember Steven McMahon 
   Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
   Councilmember Tim Cusick 
   Councilmember Stacy Clay 
    Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 
  

Also in attendance was City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan Jr.; 
Director of Economic Development, Libbey Tucker, and Chief of Police, Larry Hampton.  

2. CHANGES TO REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 
Mr. Rose requested that the City Manager's Report (K) be moved up on the agenda to after 
section G.  

 
3. EDRST GRANT GUIDELINES 

Mr. Rose stated this first item, which will address some of the work that staff has 
accomplished with the EDRST Board, is being presented to Council by the Economic 
Director, Libbey Tucker. 
 
Ms. Tucker stated the EDRST Board met in March and April.  At the March meeting, the 
Board agreed that the guidelines established in 2013 adequately outlined the criteria needed 
for evaluating funding requests, and made the following changes to the Funding Matrix; a  
scoring system used to consistently evaluate applications: 

• Addition of a subcategory to identify which category within the State Statute the  
funding request is addressing to ensure that we are meeting the requirements 

• Addition of a category to determine whether the applicant has received previous 
funding 

• Addition of a category that identifies the number of full and part-time jobs the project 
would create, and the salary range 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Carr asked when the Board would start receiving applications and when she 
anticipated they would render their recommendations to Council?  Ms. Tucker stated 
applications are due on May 31st.  She is working to do more outreach to the community to 
broaden the application base. 

E - 2 - 1



Page 2 of 10 

Thereafter, they will be reviewed by staff through June 14th and they will be presented to the 
Board at their June 18th meeting, where each applicant will be asked to make a 
presentation. 

Mayor Pro Tem Carr asked if the applications would be brought to Council for budgeting 
purposes? 

Mr. Rose stated one of the good things about Missouri is that municipalities can amend their 
budgets at any time.  So the intent is to ask for an amendment after staff has had an 
opportunity to review the applications and exercised sound judgment about the projects that 
might be approved by Council.   

Councilmember Clay stated if his memory serves him correctly, for many years there have 
been dollars within the EDRST budget dedicated to Olive that for various reasons have 
never been utilized.  Were there any conversations about that aspect of the funding?  Ms. 
Tucker stated she was able to determine from the minutes that approximately $350,000 had 
been dedicated to Olive. 

Mr. Rose stated an issue of concern is the ability to do a better job of ensuring that once a 
project is approved, those funds get carried forward.  Because if funds are not transferred 
within the budget year they are approved in, that money reverts back to the fund balance.  
Last year staff created a list of projects where the balances needed to be carried forward, 
and if the Olive Corridor Project falls within this category he suspects that staff will make a 
new request for the EDRST Board's recommendation and Council's approval. 

Councilmember Smotherson asked if there were any specific projects that the Board wanted 
to maintain?  Ms. Tucker stated that the Board is basically starting over from scratch this 
year with new applications, and as a result, she has conducted a lot of community outreach 
to help broaden the scope of applicants.  She stated members of the School Board identified 
the need to focus on workforce development type projects and the EDRST Board agreed to 
increase their efforts in that regard.   

Councilmember Cusick posed the following questions: 
Q. When did the Board start accepting applications?

Ms. Tucker stated the application process commenced on April 22nd.
Q. Has a timeline been established for when the Board's  recommendations will be
submitted to Council?

Mr. Rose stated the first step is to obtain a consensus from Council  regarding their 
acceptance of the EDRST guidelines that have been established.  And then, once staff has 
evaluated the applications and submitted them to the Board they will have a better sense of 
what the timeline is going to look like. 

Ms. Tucker stated since Council will only have one meeting in July and August, it will 
probably be August before these projects are submitted to Council. 
Q. To date, how many applications have been received?

Ms. Tucker stated although she has had meetings with several applicants regarding the
requirements, she has not received any applications. 

E - 2 - 2



 

Page 3 of 10 
 

Q. If this round of applications are approved and funds are still available, is there an 
opportunity to conduct a second application process perhaps in the fall, to attract more 
applicants?   

Mr. Rose stated his belief is that once the guidelines are in place and if funding is still 
available, the Board can conduct a reapplication process as often as they would like.  
Ms. Tucker noted that the Board has had discussions about conducting a second round 
of applications starting in the fall.   

Q. The guidelines states that "At least 25 percent of the revenue shall be used annually for 
administrative purposes".  Is staff performing those administrative duties, and if so, what do 
they consist of? 
 Mr. Rose stated even though the total 25 percent is not utilized, a majority of those 
administrative costs are used to supplement the salary, benefits, recruitment efforts, travel, 
and participation fees, specific to the Director of Economic Development.  A major 
conference Ms. Tucker will be attending this year in Las Vegas is the ICSC Conference; 
International Council of Shopping Centers, which is essential to economic development.  Mr. 
Rose stated he typically attends this conference every other year. 
Councilmember Smotherson stated most of us are aware that the City has started losing 
some of its businesses, especially on Olive.  So have any strategies been developed to help 
retain the City's existing businesses?  Ms. Tucker stated something staff is working on in 
conjunction with the applications for EDRST funds, is to reinstate the Facade Improvement 
and Small Business Lending Programs.  The hope is that these programs will assist in 
closing some of the gaps businesses might face and help them continue their operations.  
And as a part of her outreach program, she has had the opportunity to meet with businesses 
and establish relationships that ultimately, will lead to better communication and advanced 
knowledge about the types of resources they might be in need of. 
 
Mr. Rose stated another project underway is the development of an Economic Development 
Strategy.  And as a part of that strategy Council will be asked to determine the types of 
businesses they would like to see staff focus their recruitment efforts on, as well as any 
existing business this body believes,  has the potential to expand, and should be nurtured. 
 
Councilmember McMahon questioned whether Council would be given all of the applications 
to review or only the applications that staff and the EDRST Board have agreed on?  Mr. 
Rose stated the intent is to provide Council with every application, along with the 
recommendations of the EDRST Board and staff; which he hopes will all be on the same 
accord.  Councilmember McMahon asked if that would also include applications that the 
Board and staff have deemed to be not in compliance with the statute?   Mr. Rose stated 
based on his interpretation of the statute, it is pretty broad and tolerates a variety of projects.  
However, if Council feels that an application needs further evaluation to determine 
conformity, dependence will be placed on the City Attorney to render a legal opinion.   
 
Councilmember Smotherson asked whether the Board and staff had given any consideration 
to projects that might include the dispensing of medical marijuana?   
 
City Attorney, John Mulligan stated tonight's Council agenda includes a Zoning text 
amendment that deals with medical marijuana and designates the districts in which uses will 
be permitted.  So while this is the first phase of the process, there may be some additional 
regulations at the municipal level because the State is still in the final stages of drafting 
regulations that will govern the issuance of licenses to dispensaries; the type of business to 
most likely be located in U City.   E - 2 - 3



 

Page 4 of 10 
 

Mr. Mulligan stated there will be a certain amount of preemptions at the State level and the 
City won't have much control over the licensees, other than zoning or other controls to the 
extent they are not inconsistent with the Constitutional Amendment and State Statute.  So if 
Council wanted to make this a part of their economic development process, the next step 
would be to identify businesses that have a license issued by the State and attempt to recruit 
them to conduct that business in U City; because at this stage of the game, U City is 
probably ahead of most municipalities in terms of identifying the districts where these 
businesses may be located.   
 
Councilmember Clay stated he wanted to be clear that the goal is for staff to work with the 
EDRST Board and hopefully reach a consensus on the projects that warrant a 
recommendation?  Mr. Rose stated it could become very problematic if Council were to 
receive two different sets of recommendations.  So staff's objective should always be to work 
with the EDRST Board, or any of the City's Boards and Commissions, to reconcile any 
differences of opinion prior to coming before Council.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Carr asked Mr. Rose what he would like to receive from Council in terms of 
the funding guidelines established by the EDRST Board?  Mr. Rose stated if Council is 
satisfied with the guidelines as presented, and have no changes, he would take that as a 
consensus from Council that they are in agreement with what has been presented. 
 
Hearing no requests for changes to the guidelines, Mayor Pro Tem Carr noted Council's 
consensus.   
  

4. CRIME STATISTICS  
Mr. Rose stated staff has routinely been asked to keep Council abreast of the City's crime 
statistics, and that data will be presented by Chief Hampton. 
 
2018/2019 - 1st Quarter Crime Comparison 
(January of 2018 through March of 2019) 
 

E - 2 - 4



 

Page 5 of 10 
 

Part 1 Crimes by Incident Type 
Part 1 Crimes consist of rape, robbery, aggravated assault, larceny, burglary, and vehicle 
thief’s.   
 

 
 

Part 1 Crimes by Incident Type 
• In 2017 Part 1 Crime decreased by 14 percent 
• In 2018 Part 1 Crime decreased by 11 percent 
• Two contributing factors for the increase in vehicle thefts are unlocked cars and keys left 

in the vehicle 
• The Department recently purchased steering wheel column clubs that will be distributed 

to residents of U City; specifically, those individuals who were a victim of auto theft in 
2019.   

 
 

Incident Type  2018  2019  
Rape  - 1 

Robbery   8 6 

Aggravated Assault  7 12 

Larceny  176 168 

Burglary  28 16 

Motor Vehicle Theft  18 31 

Grand Total  237 234 
 

Part 1 Crimes by Ward 
• With the exception of Ward 1, there has been a slight decrease in Park 1 Crimes 
• Ward 1 experienced an increase in larcenies and auto thefts E - 2 - 5



 

Page 6 of 10 
 

• Statistics are based on intent, which means that even if nothing is taken in the act it must 
be reported 

• The Department's ability to reduce crime is dependent upon having a proactive approach, 
a decentralized policing approach, and effective community outreach  

 

 
 

 
Ward  2018  2019  

Ward 1  39  60  

Ward 2  89  68  

Ward 3  109  106  

Grand Total  237  234  

 
 

Drug Violations by Incident Type 
• The possession of drug paraphernalia is considered a Part II Crime 
• Medical Marijuana has resulted in decreased violations 
• Fentanyl is considered a synthetic narcotic and poses a danger to anyone who comes in 

contact with it 
 

Incident Type  2018  2019  
Sale/Manufacturing  

  
Marijuana  1  -  
Synthetic Narcotics  -  1  
Possession  

  Cocaine and Derivatives  2  3  
Marijuana  18  14  

Synthetic Narcotics  2  3  

Non-Narcotic Drugs  1  2  

Grand Total  24  23  
E - 2 - 6



 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Carr asked Chief Hampton if he could provide her with an explanation of what is 
considered to be a non-narcotic drug?  Chief Hampton stated that the term was established by 
the DEA, however, off the top of his head he is unable to think of a specific example.  He stated 
he would provide her with an example and a definition as soon as possible.  

 
Arrest Totals 

 
Arrest  2018  2019  

Adults  434  450  

Juveniles  21  33  

Grand Total  455  483  
 

 
 

 
Delmar Loop Manpower 
As crime trends are monitored in the region and areas surrounding the Delmar Loop in 
University City, UCPD continues to dedicate resources and strategic patrolling efforts for 
business districts like the Delmar Loop in their continuous efforts to keep this community safe.   

• 2016 – $44,672.90 {1,000.7500 overtime hours}      
• 2017 – $54,406.97 {1,231.2500 overtime hours}  
• 2018 – $91,605.53 {2,023.5000 overtime hours}  
 

Chief Hampton stated while it's unfortunate, his Department gets a lot of the blame for things 
that go on in the East Delmar Loop, which is outside of their jurisdiction. 

 
Drones 
Chief Hampton provided Council with footage from their drones in the Delmar Loop and around 
the City. 

• Currently, the department has two drones and is in the process of purchasing a third one 
 

Councilmember Clay thanked Chief Hampton for the inclusion of data on drug violations and 
stated he would like to get a better understanding of the drone as it relates to crime prevention 
and the apprehension of criminals.   

E - 2 - 7



 

Page 8 of 10 
 

Chief Hampton stated he views drones as a proactive tool that helps his officers conduct 
surveillance on highly frequented areas, monitor emergency scenes, and helps in the search of 
missing persons.  He stated the drone is utilized twice a week and they are close to having four 
officers that have completed training.   

 
Mr. Rose stated he would like to add the monitoring of special events to detect incidents or 
traffic management, as another important feature of drones.   He stated the use of technology 
like dummy cars or GPS equipped cannons to assist in high-speed chases are the type of things 
the City plans to explore because they can make U City a safer place and minimize an officer's 
exposure to unsafe conditions.   
 
Councilmember Clay asked whether the shot spotters had already been installed?  Chief 
Hampton stated that an MOU between V-5, Region Power, and Ameren must be reached prior 
to implementation, so his expectation is that they will be in place within the next three to four 
weeks.   

 
Councilmember Hales stated he was contacted by a neighbor who informed him that when the 
police noticed they had a Ring Doorbell, they knocked on their door to see if they could obtain 
any footage that might have captured a car theft.  So he was curious to know if it was possible 
for the City to establish a camera registry and publish the formation and nature of that registry in 
ROARS, to enhance the public's awareness on how they assist the Police Department?  Mr. 
Rose stated that creating a registry is certainly something staff can do, and publishing or 
highlighting things in ROARS that a resident can do to protect themselves, and their property, 
falls right in line with the City's initiative to do a better job of communicating with its residents. 
 
Councilmember Cusick stated given that U City borders several communities with historically 
higher incidents of crime, are there any statistics available that compare U City's incident rate 
with other municipalities throughout St. Louis County and the City?  Chief Hampton stated 
although he had not asked his crime analyst to prepare those statistics he could ask her to put 
something together for Council.  However, one thing to keep in mind is that you can only get a 
true comparison when U City is compared with municipalities whose demographics are fairly 
similar. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated there are a lot of residents from the 3rd Ward who use the 
Delmar Metro Station, and as a result, he receives a lot of calls about loitering, fights that often 
break out, and the smell of marijuana being smoked almost on a daily basis.  These constant 
complaints have led to a number of questions that hopefully, he can get some answers to: 

1. Why is loitering allowed to occur at this Metro Station? 
2. How strong of a relationship does UCPD have with Metro and the St. Louis Police 

Department (SLPD), and 
3. Are there statistics available that breaks down Part 1 Crimes by incident type and by 

Ward? 
 
Chief Hampton stated his Department has a very strong relationship with the SLPD, and when 
they've been asked to run their stats for this particular area it doesn't even rank in their top ten 
lists of problem areas.  On the other hand, Metro is implementing a new policing strategy aimed 
to prevent and reduce crime at all of their locations, so you should start to see enhanced patrols 
at the Delmar Station in the very near future. 
 

E - 2 - 8



 

Page 9 of 10 
 

Councilmember Hales asked whether events that occur on MetroLink get reported by the 
municipality that station is located in or St. Louis County?  Chief Hampton stated although his 
Department will be notified of an event and assist as-needed, per the MOU signed by St. Clair 
County, the City of St. Louis and St. Louis County, everything that occurs on or under a 
MetroLink platform falls under one of those jurisdictions.   Councilmember Hales stated following 
the incident at the Forest Park Station there were several instances where he witnessed U City 
and Wash U officers stationed at Big Bend and Forsyth.  Is that a continuing effort?  Chief 
Hampton stated that it is.  U City has a couple of locations they are responsible for shoring up 
because they represent quick exits and entries in and out of U City; the stations at Forsyth, 
Forest Park Expressway, Delmar, and Plymouth.   
 
Councilmember Cusick stated when you look at the drug statistics they appear to be the same 
year-over-year.  However, he has heard from residents in the 2nd and 3rd Wards who have 
expressed frustration over what they believe to be drug houses and continuous drug activities.   

1. What is the police doing to combat this issue?   
2. Is there a way to identify these problem properties and classify them as nuisance 

properties?   
3. Does the City have an established policy for handling nuisance properties, and if so, what 

does it consist of? 
 
Chief Hampton stated the Department's decentralized approach or Community Action Team is 
very proactive with respect to combating issues associated with drugs.  This is a continuing 
collaboration with St. Louis County designed specifically to address drug activity, and when 
residents notify U City about a particular address, that address goes on a priority list that both 
his Department and the Action Team will investigate.  Chief Hampton stated notifications can be 
anonymous and made either by a phone call to their hotline or via email.  However, it is 
important to note that there is a difference between a drug house and a flophouse, where drugs 
are being sold by a resident of the house without the knowledge or consent of the owner.  
 
Mr. Rose stated one thing the City has recognized is that Part 2 crimes for drug offenses are 
decreasing; not at the rate that might make everyone happy, but they are starting to go down.  
As all of you have previously been made aware, one method the police is utilizing to combat 
some of these issues is technology, and soon, they will be introducing cameras for use in hot 
spots.   
 Mr. Rose stated another important issue to recognize is that the ability to recruit 
people into the police profession has become a national problem.  And of course, one reason for 
the adjustments in class and compensation was to make U City more competitive in the 
marketplace and have the ability to attract and retain good employees.  So he thinks in the long-
term this community will see an improvement in the City's ability to fully staff its Police 
Department.   
 With respect to nuisance properties, if and when the City is able to determine that a 
crime is occurring at a specific address, that property can be classified as a nuisance property.  
At that point, it becomes a legal issue that the City Attorney would be involved in, and it could 
possibly lead to forfeiture.  He stated he thinks what happens in many of the drug crimes, is that 
they occur near a property rather than on the property, and that creates some challenges.   
 
Mr. Mulligan concurred with Mr. Rose's statement about where the crime needs to occur, and 
noted that the City does have an Ordinance that has been on the books for a number of years 
that addresses this issue; 20.270.   

E - 2 - 9



 

Page 10 of 10 
 

That Ordinance weighs out the activity considered to be a nuisance and establishes a procedure 
for taking action against those responsible for the creation of that nuisance.  And the remedies 
may include Municipal Court prosecution, as well as forfeiture.  Mr. Mulligan stated he is fully 
aware of the Department's diligence to document criminal activity that has occurred at a 
property because several years ago, he was involved in closing down a number of drug houses 
in U City.   So while calls for service that generate police reports can assist in the Police 
Department's ability to combat this issue, it also requires cooperation from the community.       
 
5. ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor Pro Tem Carr called for a voice vote to adjourn the Study Session, which carried 
unanimously.  The meeting was adjourned at 6:24.    
 

 

LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
 

 

 

E - 2 - 10



 
 
 

Council Agenda Item Cover 
 
 
 
 
MEETING DATE:   May 28, 2019 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Zoning Code Text Amendment - Zoning Code Sections 400.030,  
    400.510, 400.570, 400.620, 400.630 and adding Division 15 to  
    Article V of Chapter 400 Relating to Medical Marijuana. 

 
AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing 

 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? : Yes 

 

BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
 
The following proposed amendments to the University City Zoning Code were reviewed by the 
Planning Commission along with City Staff. The Plan Commission reviewed the changes and made 
comments during their regularly scheduled meeting on April 24, 2019 at the Heman Park 
Community Center. The proposed revisions are intended to be a proposed solution to allow for the 
appropriate siting of these facilities without negatively impacting the neighboring properties and 
land uses. 

 
This agenda item requires a public hearing at the City Council level and passage of an ordinance. 
The first reading and introduction of Bill 9386 took place on May 13, 2019. The Public Hearing and 
second and third readings, along with the anticipated passage of the ordinance, is to occur at the 
May 28, 2019 meeting. 

 
 
 

I - 1 - 1



COPY FOR YOUR RECORDS ONLY,
NOT AN INVOICE OR AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION 

Please Read Carefully

Missouri Lawyers Media is not responsible for 
errors or omissions after the First Run Date. If 
any errors, contact 1 (314) 421-1880. Attorneys 
placing legal advertisements are responsible for 
payment of same.

Clifford Cross
University City, City Of
6801 Delmar Blvd 
St. Louis, MO 63130-3104

ORDER KEYWORDS:

1 of 1
Missouri Lawyers Media

Missouri Lawyers Weekly, St Louis Daily Record, St Charles Business 
Record The Countian (St Louis, Jefferson), The Daily Record and LAN

319 N Fourth Street, 5th Floor 
St. Louis,  MO 63102

1 (314) 421-1880 
www.molawyersmedia.com

Subsequent Rate:
Anchor Rate: $26.68

$0.00

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF UNIVERSITY 
CITY WILL HOLD A PUBLIC 
HEARING ON TUESDAY, MAY 28, 
2019, AT 6:30 PM IN THE 5TH 
FLOOR COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF 
CITY HALL, 6801 DELMAR 
BOULEVARD, TO CONSIDER THE 
PROPOSAL FOR T

PO #
Order #
Placement

Schedule
# of Times
Base Charge*
Addt'l Charges/Disc*
Payment Amount

TOTAL:
(Not an Invoice)

11742499
Countian St. Louis (MO)

Government
Hearings and Minutes
5/10/2019 - 5/10/2019

1 inserts
26.68
0.00
0.00

26.68

*Changes to this order may result in pricing changes.
Order: 11742499 Proof Printed:  9:35:02AM on 5/8/2019 by Karie ClarkCustomer: 10017118/University City, City Of

I - 1 - 2



 
 
 
 
 

Council Agenda Item Cover 
 

 
MEETING DATE:   May 28, 2019 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Third Ward Community Booklet  
 
AGENDA SECTION:   Consent Agenda 
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 
 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:     
 
University City would like to send out a neighborhood booklet to all of the residents of the 
Third Ward. This booklet covers neighborhood etiquette as well as the services provided by 
University City. A copy of the booklet is attached. 
 
The printing and mailing cost for the booklet is: 
  Printing 5,000 booklets       $3,183.00 
  Processing to be delivered for 5000 (labeled, etc.)     $404.00 
  Estimated postage for 5,000     $1,334.00 
 
Total estimate:        $4,921.00 
 
This expenditure should come out of the FY2019 General Fund Fund Balance 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The City Manager recommends Approval. 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
- Copy of the Neighborhood Booklet 
 

J - 1 - 1



Tips to Being a Better Neighbor

Bwayne Smotherson
3rd Ward Councilman
     bsmotherson@gmail.com 
     314.726.9572
      1243 Purdue Ave. 

University City, MO 63130

W E L C O M E  T O 

the Neighborhood

J - 1 - 2



“ When one neighbor helps 
another, we strengthen our 
communities.” - Jennifer Pahlka

I am delighted you chose to call the great city of University City home!

We want your residence here to be long and prosperous, and for you to 
be proud of our communal efforts to be good neighbors. Because the 
words “Good Neighbor” may mean different things to different people, 
we have provided a few guidelines for us all to follow.

Whether you’re the new household on the block, or you’ve lived here 
your whole life, like I have, please review this information so you will 
know what is expected of us as neighbors. That way, we can all be  
comfortable and proud of our neighborhood.

Sincerely, 
Bwayne Smotherson

Tips to Being a Better Neighbor 1

Changing Times . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2 

Being A Good Neighbor  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3 

Welcoming New Neighbor Policy  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .4

Noise  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .5 

Social Events  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .6 

Curb Appeal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .7

Front Yard Don’ts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .7 

Portable Basketball Goals/Hoops . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .8 

Recycling In University City  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .9 

Pets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .10 

Getting A Permit  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .11 

City Services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .12-14

Schools and School Board  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .15

Please note: This booklet is for informational purposes only. 
It is not to be sold. It contains excerpts from an article by D. 
Mayne, ABOUT STYLE & personal views on the subject. From 
University City Residents. 3rd Ward CBAS.

Table of Contents

J - 1 - 3



Tips to Being a Better NeighborTips to Being a Better Neighbor 32

Neighborhoods continually change 

over the years. In the past, people 

brought baskets of sandwiches or fruit 

to the new people on the block, and 

sometimes they offered to help with a 

project. A welcome lady would stop by 

for coffee and leave a list of important 

numbers. Neighbors shared tools and 

garden equipment so that everyone 

didn’t have to go out and buy expensive 

items that they wouldn’t use often.

Even today, all neighborhoods have 

their own personalities. Some tend to 

be more open to street parties and 

socializing, while others are made 

up of people who prefer to keep their 

neighborhood calm and quiet. We like 

to keep our neighborhood warm and 

inviting for all residents.

Regardless of the type of neighborhood 

you live in, there are still some basic 

etiquette rules you should follow to be 

a good neighbor.

The ultimate goal is to live in peace 

and harmony, and even though  

that’s not always possible, you can  

at least do whatever it takes to  

prevent hostilities and long-lasting  

hard feelings.

YOU’LL  F IND 
INFORMAT ION 
ON HOW TO  
DO THAT  IN 
TH IS  BOOKLET ! 

Being a good neighbor means that you treat others how you would 
like to be treated. These are people you are likely to see every day, or 
at least often. Make sure to consider the bullets below to be a good 
neighbor.

Tips on being a good neighbor:

 

Being a 
good neighbor

•  Observe and respect your neighbor’s 
personal space.

•  If borrowing an item, return the item 
immediately after using it. If you 
break the item, pay to fix it or  
replace it.

•  Don’t be the neighborhood gossip. 
This is unnecessary and will eventually 
come back to haunt you.

•  If you have an issue with a neighbor, 
go directly to that person and discuss 
it in an adult manner. Don’t call the 
police unless you are threatened.

•  Not everyone is a dog or cat lover, 
so show responsibility for your pets. 
That includes keeping them off  
the neighbor’s lawn and picking up 
after them.

•  Remember your neighbors during 
the holidays with a card or a small 
homemade gift.

•  If you and a neighbor have a  
misunderstanding, make an extra 
effort to make things right by shaking 
hands and being on friendly terms. 
This small gesture can go a long way.

•  If your neighborhood has a  
homeowner’s association, know  
the rules and follow them.

•  Make sure you welcome new  
neighbors to University City!  
See more on the next page. 

J - 1 - 4



Tips to Being a Better NeighborTips to Being a Better Neighbor 54

N O I S E  C O U R T E S Y
Quiet Hours – Sitting outside on a warm summer night with your spouse or friends is wonderful. 
Long conversations outside can be heard by many neighbors depending on the lot size 
after 10 PM. Consider taking them inside. Take it inside so your neighbor can sleep  
peacefully. Avoid all unnecessary noises from any source from 9:00 PM to 9:00 AM. This 
includes revving car engines, voices, and whatever else may awaken someone from a 
sound sleep. No one expects you to be quiet 24/7, but you should also respect certain 
basic rules when it comes to making too much noise. A lot depends on where you live,  
what type of dwelling you occupy, and the habits of your neighbors. Noise acceptability in a 
street filled with young families is different from an apartment building occupied by single 
twenty-somethings.

Noise etiquette rules:

One of the things that we can do to make a family feel welcome in 
their new home is to stop by with a friendly introduction. This enriches 
the lives of new neighbors as well as those who have lived there for 
a while.

Ideas on how to welcome new neighbors:

•  If you live in an apartment building,
don’t yell to someone at the other
end of the hall.

•  There is no reason to hammer a
nail on a common wall that you
share with the apartment next door
past 8:00 PM. It can wait until the
next day.

•  Mowing the lawn at 7:00 AM on a
Saturday morning will not endear you
to your neighbors. Wait until at least
10:00 AM.

•  Don’t honk your horn every time you
pull into your driveway or make other
unnecessary noises.

•  Introduce yourself as soon as you
can. Give the new neighbors your
phone number.

•  Hand deliver a bouquet of fresh-cut
flowers from your garden.

•  Give the new family a list of services
and phone numbers in the area.
Include emergency services, doctor’s
offices, dentists, schools, places
that offer carryout, dry cleaners, and
whatever else you can think of.

•  Have a block party once a year to
get to know all the new neighbors.
When people make an effort to be
a good neighbor by following proper
etiquette, everyone will have a good
sense of wellbeing, knowing you

are surrounded by friends. The  
neighborhood will be more appealing, 
and you’ll be more content in your 
home.

•  An extra benefit is the security of
knowing that you and your neighbors
have each other’s backs.

W E L C O M E  T O 

University City
Specific Tips, Rules 

and Regulations

PLEASE KEEP NOISE 
TO A MINIMUM 

PLEASE RESPECT 
OUR NEIGHBORS

J - 1 - 5



Tips to being a Better NeighborTips to being a Better Neighbor 76

A good neighbor is one who maintains the exterior of the house and lawn.  

It has been proven or found that lack of lawn and exterior maintenance can 

affect your neighbors. If you can’t mow your own lawn, hire a neighbor’s child 

or lawn service to keep it neat.

Rules: 

Here are some tips for basic exterior maintenance:

You might be a party animal, and that’s just fine as long as you don’t intrude 

or impose on your neighbors. An occasional late-night blast might be forgiven, 

but all-night parties every weekend may not go over well. Be thoughtful to 

your neighbors when you throw a party.

Good neighbor social guidelines:

•  Residents are required to keep their 
property clean and free of trash.

•  Residents’ grass should be maintained 
shorter than 7 inches.

•  Residents may not place signs of 
any kind in tree lawns, parks or other 
public land, on utility poles or trees.

•  Post house numbers so they are  
visible from both the street and alley.

•  Cordwood, pallets, cardboard and  
barrels must be placed in an open rack 
at least 15 inches from the ground.

•  Derelict or unlicensed autos may  
NOT be kept on the street or on  
private property.

•   No commercial vehicles can be 
parked on the street or driveways of 
private property.

•  No vehicle may be parked on a public 
street for more than five consecutive 
days without being moved.

•  Truck Parking – Non-commercial 
trucks owned by a resident may be 
parked in front of the resident’s  
home upon obtaining a truck  
permit and payment of a one-time 
$25 inspection fee. (Obtain from 
Finance Department.) The application 
can be obtained from the Finance 
Department.

•  Mow the lawn. Don’t let it get  
knee-high before doing something 
about it.

•  Remove mold from the exterior walls 
and paint when necessary.

•  Make sure that trees, shrubs, and 
other elements don’t creep into your 
neighbor’s yard. This includes tree 
limbs, spreading shrubs, and weeds.

•  Remove all bicycles, skateboards, and 
toys from the front yard at the end 
of the day. Your neighborhood has a 
homeowners’ association, know what 
they do or don’t allow outside and 
abide by the rules.

•  Ask your guests to park in the driveway 
or in front of your house. Make sure 
they don’t block someone else’s 
driveway or use their designated spot 
in an apartment complex lot.

•  Obey noise ordinance laws. If a  
neighbor calls or comes over and 
asks you to quiet down, be friendly, 
apologize, and oblige to the request.

•  If you are having a big party, you 
might as well invite the neighbors. 
This does several things: it shows 
that you are a friendly person, it 
allows you to know your neighbors 
better, and you are much less likely 
to have complaints.

S O C I A L  E V E N T S 

There are times when we should make a lot of noise: when activities in our neighborhood 
are harmful and disruptive, when dangerous or hazardous situations exist, when 
strangers are continuously loitering and lurking around, when abusive occurrences are 
happening and we know about them, when children are hungry and not well kept… 

Yes, there are times when we should make noise and take action.

BACKYARD EASEMENT EDUCATION
Easements are a right given to another person or  
entity to trespass upon or use land owned by  
somebody else. 3-5 feet area directly behind your 
back fences or yard is your responsibility to maintain.

P R O P E R T Y  U P K E E P

and Curb Appeal 

J - 1 - 6



Tips to Being a Better NeighborTips to Being a Better Neighbor 98

Weekly Collections – at your curbside

Single Stream Recycling – Place ALL recyclables in one cart!

Containers only need a quick rinse to remove most residue: they do not 
need to be washed.

What Items Can I Recycle At The Curb?
Glass, aluminum containers and foil, other metal containers, paper, cardboard, 
plastic #1, #2, #3, #4, #5, #6, and #7 are acceptable; (#6 IS recyclable if the 
item is plastic. If the product is #6 and foam, it is NOT recyclable).

No plastic bags, yard waste, construction materials, light bulbs, ceramics, 
heavy-soiled materials, hardcover books, metal clips, spirals or binders,  
automobile parts, textiles, hazardous chemicals.

What Items Can I Recycle At The Drop-Off Center?
Drop off center/recycling – 975 Pennsylvania Ave. (rear Parking Lot)

Drop off textiles and plastic bags and film (CLEAN plastic bags, grocery, bread, 
cereal, ice, dry cleaning, wood pellet bags; Ziploc and other reclosable bags; case 
overwraps; newspaper sleeves; bubble wrap; etc.) and any items listed above to 
the rear parking lot of the Heman Park Community Center at 975 Pennsylvania 
(between Vernon & Olive).

Special Collections
Holiday trees will be collected by city workers during the weeks of January 2 and 
January 9. On your regular collection day.

For questions about how to recycle or dispose of other materials please visit 
ucitymo.org click the Departments tab, then Public Works and Parks, then  
Recycling or call 314.505.8560.

Flowers are beautiful in your front or back yard but a vegetable garden may not 
be the best choice for your curb appeal. Clotheslines are only to be used in your  
backyard. Old couches and relic cars should be towed away and not left in either of 
your yards and particularly not in your front yard.

If you have a Bar-B-Que Pit in your front yard or on your front porch, please  
remove it, and put it in the back. These things may seem unimportant to you, but 
they can be detrimental reflections of you and very damaging to your neighborhood. 
Let’s take pride in what we do; pride in ourselves, our families, our homes, our 
neighborhood and our entire community.

•  Collections begin at 7 AM year-round. Place trash and recycling carts out no
earlier than 4 PM the day before collection.

•  Do not burn refuse of any kind, or sweep litter and refuse into the street.

•  Place brush for collection in bundles not to exceed 4 feet long and 2 feet
around (maximum 6 bundles per pickup).

•  Branches should be no more than 3” in diameter. Tree logs, stumps or trunks
will NOT be collected.

The placement of “Portable Basketball Goals” on any of the public highways, 
roads, bridges, streets, avenues, lanes or alleys is dangerous and is against the 
law in many states and municipalities. As this may not seem like a hazard, it can 
become one quickly. In University City, we are blessed with many parks – let’s  
utilize them and teach our children that the parks are there for their enjoyment 
and recreation. Make sure these activities are reserved to your backyards,  
driveways and neighborhood parks.

B A R - B - Q U E  P I T S 

R E F U S E  A N D  YA R D 
W A S T E  C O L L E C T I O N

P O R TA B L E  B A S K E T B A L L 
G O A L S / H O O P S

Recycling In 
University City

BULK AND LEAF PICKUPS
The City is divided into three areas for bulk and leaf collection: West, Central and East areas.  
To find out the date of the next pickup in your area, call the Public Works and Parks Department 
at 314.505.8560.

J - 1 - 7



Tips to Being a Better NeighborTips to Being a Better Neighbor 1110

BEFORE we decide to go into a new venture, let’s check out the permits and  
projects required. Sure it’s our house and our property, but we are a part of a  
community that has rules and regulations, many of which are there for our safety.  

So let’s be good neighbors and set great examples for newcomers. We can build a 
stronger community and a stronger sense of community just by getting to know our 
neighbors, cleaning up our surroundings if need be, helping each other and finding 
new possibilities to make us better.

An occupancy permit must be obtained prior to moving into a house, apartment, 
institution or business. (Obtain permit document from Community Development 
Department).

Permits for building, plumbing or electric work, and installing or painting signs must 
be obtained prior to beginning a project. (Obtain permit documents from Community 
Development Department).

Residents, businesses, contractors and utility companies must acquire a permit  
before performing any work or placing dumpsters, pods, or items in public right-of-way 
(curbs, sidewalks, gutters, streets, alleys, tree lawns, and driveways) or installing 
banners on light poles. (Obtain permit documents from Public Works and Parks 
Department).

Disability Services
•   City Hall is fully-accessible from the parking lot off Trinity Avenue on the west 

side of the City Hall.

•  Disabled residents may receive a smaller trash cart or rollout service upon 
submission of doctor’s statement to Public Works and Parks Department and 
verification that no one at residence is able to pull out a regular cart.

•  Public Works and Parks Department will provide a disabled parking space and 
sign on City-maintained streets adjacent to a resident’s home when established 
criteria are met. For information call 314.505.8560.

• For City recreation inclusion services call 314.505.8607.

Pets are wonderful companions for any age. They are affectionate protectors that 
quickly become members of the family. Just as you care for your children,  you must 
care for your pets. You are responsible for their health, wellbeing, and everything 
they do, take in and let out.

Nutrition – Your dog needs proper nutrition every day to stay healthy. Select a 
high-quality dog food and ask your vet for advice concerning the proper amount. 
Split your dog’s daily required food intake into two meals a day and try to keep an 
established schedule for feedings to keep it consistent. Your dog should always 
have access to water as well.

Potty Break – Just like children, dogs need potty breaks after meals – usually within 
20 minutes after eating. That is in addition to letting them out in the morning when 
they wake up, right before they go to sleep and other bathroom breaks throughout 
the day. Let them complete their business in a fenced in grass area or put them 
on a leash and take them for a walk. Remember to clean up after them when they 
are finished.

Of course, you know these things and would never have a pet that is turning over 
neighbors trash cans looking for food, or digging holes in the neighbors’ yard…but 
some do. Please respect these rules, as they keep our neighborhood enjoyable.

Regulations:

•  Obtain a City license for all dogs 
from the Finance Department 
314.505.8544. City ordinance  
requires a special permit for  
pitbull dogs.

•  A clinic is held for pet vaccinations 
on the first Sunday in April at  
Heman Park Community Center,  
975 Pennsylvania.

•  Observe ordinances regarding  
leashes and dog waste. Two animals 
are allowed in a single-family  
residence; one in multi-family unit.

•  Loud and continuous dog barking is 
municipal violation subject to fines 
and should be reported to the police.

P E T S P E R M I T S

Chicken Permit Application – The City of University City 
allows for five (5) chicken permits per calendar year. 
The City has a limit of seven (7) hens per permit. Roosters 
and the sale of eggs are strictly prohibited. 

J - 1 - 8



Tips to Being a Better NeighborTips to Being a Better Neighbor 1312

City Hall
314.862.6767
ucitymo.org

6801 Delmar Blvd.
University City, MO 63130

City Administration
City Manager’s Office - 314.505.8534

City Clerk’s Office - 314.505.8605

Departments

Planning and Development  
314.505.8500

Finance - 314.505.8544

Human Resources - 314.505.8693

Public Works - 314.505.8560

Parks, Recreation and  
Forestry - 314.505.8625

Municipal Court - 314.505.8578

Communications – 314.505.8553

Economic Development – 314.505.8533

Selected City Services
General Information - 314.862.6767
Emergency Hotline - 314.505.8500
Library - 314.727.3150
Finance/Refuse Billing - 314.505.8544

Permits/Inspections - 314.505.8500

Public Works/Parks - 314.505.8560

Fire and Police Departments

Emergency - 911

Police Department - 314.727.2211

Fire Administration - 314.595.8591

Fire Station #1 - 314.505.8768

Fire Station #2 - 314.505.8769

PLEASE V IS IT  THE 
C ITY ’S  WEBSITE  FOR 
STAFF  D IRECTORY, 
CALENDAR EVENTS, 
AND MORE! 

Additional
University City Public  
Library - 314.727.3150

Senior Services - 314.505.8563 

Heman Park Community  
Center -  314.505.8617

Ruth Park Golf Course - 314.727.4800

Mid-East Area Agency  
on Aging - 636.207.0847

Board of Election Commissioners 
St. Louis County - 314.615.1800

Fair U City - 314.505.8696

Historical Society of  
University City - 314.727.3150

Loop Special Business  
District - 314.727.8000

Operation Food Search - 314.726.5355

Real Estate Tax & Property Tax  
St. Louis County - 314.615.1500

Sutter-Meyer Society - 314.862.4569

The Green Center - 314.725.8314

University City Children’s 
Center - 314.726.0148

University City Education  
Foundation - 314.290.4037

U City in Bloom - 314.727.8243

Youth Emergency Service 
Helpline - 314.727.6294

Other Services

Ameren Missouri - 800.552.7583

Missouri-American  
Water - 866.430.0820

Spire Inc. - 800-887-4173

Metropolitan St. Louis  
Sewer District - 314.768.6260

AT&T - 888.757.6500

Charter Communications - 833.780.1880

Metro Transit Information - 314.231.2345

C I T Y

Information
C I T Y

Information

City Manager
Gregory Rose
314.505.8534
grose@ucitymo.org

J - 1 - 9



Tips to Being a Better NeighborTips to Being a Better Neighbor 1514

School Board Members
Joanne Soudah | President | 314.643.7698
Kristine Hendrix | Vice President | 314.852.2928
Chelsea Addison | Secretary | 404.542.2018
Lisa Brenner | Director | 314.863.3249
LaVerne Ford-Williams | Director | 314.280.3623
Matt Bellows | Director | 636.399.3844
George Lenard | Director | 314.324.6560
 
University City Schools - ucityschools.org
University City High School | 7401 Balson Avenue | 314.290.4100
Brittany Woods Middle School | 8125 Groby Road | 314.290.4200
Barbara Jordan Elementary School | 1500 N. 82nd Street | 314.290.4361
Flynn Park Elementary School | 7220 Waterman Avenue | 314.290.4421
Jackson Park Elementary School | 7400 Balson Avenue | 314.290.4451
Pershing Elementary School | 6761 Bartmer Avenue | 314.290.4150
Lieberman Learning Center | 8136 Groby Road | 314.290.4330
Julia Goldstein ECE | 737 Kingsland Avenue | 314.721.2965
McNair Administration Building | 8136 Groby Road | 314.290.4000 
Adult Basic Education & Literacy Program | 8136 Groby | 314.290.4052

University City Private Schools
Agape School | 7400 Olive Blvd | 314.725.5262
Bais Yaakow High School | 700 North & South | 314.863.9230
Christ the King | 7324 Balson | 314.725.5855
Our Lady of Laurdes | 7157 Northmoor | 314.726.3352
Torah Prep School (office) | 8659 Olive | 314.569.2929

Centennial Commons features state-of-the-art recreational design, new equipment, 
and programming, which offers unparalleled recreational opportunities to visitors 
young and old. It is a place for families, with programs for children, students, adults, 
and seniors. We provide fitness, learning education and fun, special events and 
sports programs that will fit your daily schedule. Whether you are a first time visitor 
or a returning member – we welcome you to our beautiful recreational facility. There 
are Indoor basketball and various activities for all ages. Check out the recreation 
services.

 
COMMONS 

IS THERE 
FOR YOU!

CENTENNIAL

7210 Olive Blvd. University City, MO 63130

U N I V E R S I T Y  C I T Y

School District

J - 1 - 10



Tips to Being a Better Neighbor 16

C I T Y  C O U N C I L

Mayor
Terry Crow
6801 Delmar Blvd

314.505.8606
314.918.0045 X2
mayor@ucitymo.org

Second Ward
Tim Cusick
7915 Glenside Place
314.230.3337
cusickward2@gmail.com  

Third Ward
Bwayne Smotherson
1243 Purdue
314.726.9572
bsmotherson@gmail.com  

First Ward
Steve McMahon
8135 Stanford
314.422.6576
steve_mcmahon@att.net

First Ward
Jeff Hales
7471 Kingsbury Blvd
314.283.5402
halesforucity@gmail.com

Second Ward
Paulette Carr, PhD
7901 Gannon Ave
314.727.0919
paulette_carr@sbcglobal.com 

Third Ward
Stacy Clay
1328 Midland Dr
314.323.4025
clayucity@gmail.com 

 
FOR HELPING TO 

 
PLACE TO LIVE! 

 
AND FRIENDLY 

 
A FUN, BEAUTIFUL

THANK YOU

MAKE
UNIVERSITY CITY 

J - 1 - 11



J - 1 - 12



                     
 Council Agenda Item Cover  
___________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                            
MEETING DATE:  05/28/2019                            
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Replacement Police Vehicles  
 
AGENDA SECTION:   Consent Agenda 
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:    
The Police Department has four marked patrol vehicles that have reached the end of their service life 
and require replacement. The Police Department has requested that these be replaced with Dodge 
Charger sedans.  The State of Missouri has issued a statewide cooperative purchasing contract for 
police vehicles.     
 
The three patrol vehicles are listed on the FY2019 fleet replacement budget, as approved (please see 
attachment).  The fourth vehicle is a need due to the increased number of operational K9 units (2 ea. 
from 1 ea.) in the Police force.  These vehicle purchases are proposed to be funded from the 02-Fleet 
Reserve Funds.  Staff has verified that the current fund balance is sufficient for this purchase. 
 
Vehicles to be Replaced: 
 
Three 2015 Chevrolet Impala patrol vehicles 
One 2006 Chevrolet Impala K9 vehicle 
 
Selected Replacements with Total Price with Additional Equipment 
 
The three patrol vehicles will be equipped with a one/half rear seat prisoner enclosure.  The delivered 
price will be $25,687.    
 
The delivered price of the K9 unit is $24,842. The rest of the equipment for the vehicle will need to be 
sourced from several vendors.  As much of the equipment as possible will be reused from the old 
vehicle. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:     City Manager recommends that the City Council approve an award to 
Landmark Dodge for the amount of $101,903 for the replacement vehicles. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1) FY2019 Fleet replacement budget, 
2) Missouri State Highway Patrol applicable contract price sheet without equipment, 
3) Quote for proposed K9 vehicle. 

J - 2 - 1



J - 2 - 2



Page 11 of 25 

 
PATROL VEHICLES – MODEL YEAR 2019 

(Statewide) 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Contract Number:  CC190367003 Contractor:   Landmark Dodge 
 
Line Item 15 
UNSPSC Code:  25101702 
 
MAKE/MODEL:   2019 Dodge Charger Pursuit All-Wheel Drive Sedan           PRICE:  $24,420.00 
 
 

EQUIPMENT INCLUDED IN PRICE 
 
- 5.7 liter V8 gasoline engine with heavy-duty cooling 

system and engine oil cooler 
- All wheel drive 
- Five (5) speed automatic with overdrive, heavy-duty for 

police operation.  Lever shifter. 
- 3.07 to 1 rear axle ratio 
- Heavy-duty electro-hydraulic rack and pinion power 

steering with oil cooler. 
- Tilt steering wheel 
- Heavy-duty fade resistant four wheel anti-lock disc 
 brakes with power booster 
- Heavy-duty 4 wheel independent front and rear police 

tuned suspension.  
- Five (5) tires, 245/55R18 “W” speed rated (includes full-

size spare) 
- Five (5) 18” x 7.5” steel wheels (includes full-size spare) 
- 18” Full Wheel Covers 
- Spare tire relocation bracket 
- 220 ampere heavy-duty alternator 
- 800 c.c.a. minimum battery 
- Bluetooth hands-free device 
- Police type speedometer, 0-160MPH certified for accuracy 
- Speed Control 
- Air conditioning system with integral heater and defroster 
- Electric rear window defroster 
- Manufacturer’s standard radio 
- Power windows and door locks, rear power window 
 operable from rear seat and driver’s seat, rear window 
 lockout switch controllable from driver’s position 
- Rear inside door locks and handles fully operable 
- Single key locking system; keyless entry system 
- Electric to unlock the deck lid from driver’s position inside 

the vehicle, ignition powered 
- Heavy-duty bucket seats, reinforced for increased support 

and covered with heavy duty cloth fabric; no center 
console; power adjusting driver seat 

- Heavy-duty cloth bench rear seat 
- Manufacturer’s standard air bags 
- Full carpeting front and rear 
- Carpeted floor mats 
- Front license bracket 
- Factory spotlight provision, left hand with 6” halogen 

spotlight 
- High intensity red/white auxiliary dome lamp wired and 

switched independently from standard dome lamp 

-     Standard production solid color exterior (billet, silver, 
indigo blue, max steel, black, white, granite, red) and 
standard interior trim 

- Manufacturer’s standard backup camera 
- Police equipment mounting bracket located between front 

seats 
- Officer Protection Package (blind spot, power, fold pursuit 

mirrors; exterior mirrors with heating element; ParkSense 
rear park assist system; blind spot and cross path detection; 
programmable system to alert officer when vehicle is 
approached from rear; intermotive modules shipped 
separately and installed by agency) 

- Secure Park 
 

AVAILABLE OPTIONS 
(for line item 15) 

 
Line Item 16– 3.6 liter V6 gasoline engine             $2,480.00 

(deletes all-wheel drive & changes  (credit) 
axle ratio to 2.62 to 1; changes 
power steering to electric assist & 
deletes power steering oil cooler)   

 
Line Item 17 – Delete all-wheel drive system          $1,350.00  

(changes axle ratio to 2.62 to 1;    (credit) 
changes power steering to electric 
assist & deletes power steering oil 
cooler)      

 
Line Item 18 – Convenience Group 1  $427.00 
  (includes power adjustable pedals 
  & driver/front passenger power adjusting 
  seats) 
 
Line Item 19 – Four (4) additional key FOBS  $134.00 
   
Line Item 20 – 12.1 inch Integrated Display Pkg.     $1,999.00 
 
 
DELIVERY: 60-160 days ARO 
 
WARRANTY: 3 years or 36,000 miles (bumper to bumper) 

5 years or 100,000 miles (power train) 
 
 

 
 J - 2 - 3



J - 2 - 4



J - 2 - 5



Page 12 of 25 

PREPARATION & DELIVERY COST FOR COOP MEMBERS & OTHER STATE AGENCIES 
(fee pertains to line item 15) 
 
Line Item 21 – Preparation Cost     $410.00 per vehicle 
Other State agencies and Cooperative Procurement members  
may purchase vehicles off this contract. The total vehicle preparation  
cost stated for the vehicles processed through the contractors dealership is  
charged per vehicle. 
 
 

Line Item 48 – Delivery Cost     $0.65 per mile 
Total round trip per mile cost for contractor to deliver cooperative  
procurement member and other state agency vehicles if requested. 
 
Vehicles will be delivered from Independence, Missouri. 
 
************************************************************************************************************ 
 

J - 2 - 6



                     
 Council Agenda Item Cover  
___________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                            
 
MEETING DATE:  05/28/2019                            
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Brush Chipper Purchase 
 
AGENDA SECTION:   Consent Agenda 
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:    
The Parks, Recreation and Forestry Department has a 2008 Mobark brush 
chipper that has reached the end of its service life and requires replacement. 
This unit is used extensively by the Forestry Division for tree removal and to help 
clear storm debris.  This unit is listed on the FY2019 Fleet Replacement budget 
as approved by City Council (see attachment). 
 
Staff had demonstrations performed from several different models and 
determined that the Brush Bandit Model 19XPC was best suited to our 
operations.  This unit is eligible for purchase through a cooperative purchasing 
program through Sourcewell (Formerly National IPA) The unit with necessary 
options and additions per our specifications would be $83,890.  The purchase of 
this equipment is proposed to be funded from the 02-Fleet Reserve Funds.  Staff 
has verified that the current fund balance is sufficient for this purchase. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:     City Manager recommends that the City Council 
approve an award to K & K Equipment Supply for the total amount of $83,890 for 
the purchase of a Brush Bandit Chipper as proposed. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1) FY2019 Fleet replacement budget, 
2) Cooperative purchasing program applicable contract acceptance and 

award, 
3) Selected model K & K Equipment Supply quote. 

J - 3 - 1



J - 3 - 2



J - 3 - 3



K & K Supply
535 North Highway Drive 
Fenton, MO 63026-2541 

USA 
636-349-1141 (Phone)

636-349-1183 (Fax)
www.kandksupply.com

QUOTATION 
Quotation #: Quote Created: Last Updated: Salesperson: 

93630 05/01/19 01:58 pm
by K & K Supply 

05/16/19 09:41 am
by Colleen Hall 

Mike Harrell 

CUSTOMER:

City of University City
1015 Pennsylvania Ave.City 
University City, MO  63130
USA
314-862-3208 (Phone)
Tom Brushwood (Contact)
tbrushwood@ucitymo.org

INTIMIDATOR 19XPC (19" DRUM STYLE) BRUSH BANDIT 
Qty Part #: Description: Base Price: 

1 MODEL-19XPC  Intimidator 19XPC - (19" Drum Style) Brush Bandit $ 45150.00

STANDARD EQUIPMENT 
1 STANDARD 37" diameter x 22" wide drum with (4) 5/8" X 5 1/2" X 10" dual edge knives

1 STANDARD 360 degree HAND crank swivel discharge (height adjustable) with 12" adjustable chip 
deflector 

1 STANDARD Clean out and inspection door on discharge

1 STANDARD 3/16" x 2" x 6" rectangular tubing with a 1/4" x 3" x 6" tubular tongue

1 STANDARD 8,000 pound capacity tongue jack with 15" of travel and foot pad

1 STANDARD 12 volt system with rubber mounted LED taillights, 6 prong replaceable coiled power cord 
& protected heavy-duty wiring with junction box, and LED clearance lights with reflectors.

1 STANDARD Frame / Fender supports 

1 STANDARD 30 gallon steel fuel tank with magnetic drain plug, lockable filler cap, and aluminum sight 
gauge

1 STANDARD 30 gallon steel hydraulic tank with magnetic drain plug, lockable filler cap, and aluminum 
sight gauge

1 STANDARD Hydraulic lift cylinder (controlled manually)

1 STANDARD Spring loaded slide box type feed system with (2) horizontal feed wheels. Top feed wheel 
is chain driven along with (1) 63.9 CID motor and is 15 3/4" diameter x 25" wide, bottom 
feed wheel is driven by (1) 63.9 CID motor and is 10 5/8" diameter x 25" wide 

1 STANDARD (2) Last chance safety pull cables

1 STANDARD Wooden pusher tool with mount on infeed hopper

1 STANDARD Heavy-duty taillight covers

1 STANDARD Weather resistant manual container

1 STANDARD Banded chipper belts

J - 3 - 4



1 STANDARD Safety control bar controls forward / neutral / reverse 

1 STANDARD Engine disable plug for hood locking pin-preventing engine from operating without pin in 
place

1 STANDARD Safety DVD, (2) 6" wide x 9" tall Bandit operator's manuals (one paper copy and one 
waterproof copy tethered to machine) and (1) engine operator's manual

1 STANDARD Spanish & English combination safety decals

1 STANDARD Lockable aluminum toolbox

1 STANDARD Pressure check kit for Intimidator 15XP|Intimidator 18XP - Gauge is NOT included

OPTIONS 
Qty Part #: Description: Option Price: Extended: 

1 333-23662 Standard Imron Industrial Urethane Alert Orange $ 0.00 $ 0.00

1 990-RC1330-910 John Deere 4045HFC09, 173 horsepower engine with 
NACD Spring Loaded clutch - Tier 4 FINAL (Includes 5 year 
/ 5,000 hour engine warranty) 

$ 35345.00 $ 35345.00

1 990-100962 Standard manual clutch is included with engine $ 0.00 $ 0.00

1 990-1018-11 Standard drive system for 19XPC $ 0.00 $ 0.00

1 911-6000-45 Murphy PV380 panel with reversing auto feed for John 
Deere 173 horsepower diesel engines (Includes 1,000 CCA 
battery with aluminum battery box) 

$ 3000.00 $ 3000.00

1 OPTION-911-5000-75 33 1/2" high x 64" wide tapered heavy-duty infeed with 
weld on pan and infeed deflectors (Units with 25" wide 
feed wheels) 

$ 325.00 $ 325.00

1 500-0001-75 19XP/ 19XPC Knife Sales Kit $ 496.73 $ 496.73

1 990-100468 Single 12,000 pound Leaf Spring axle with electric brakes $ 0.00 $ 0.00

1 OPTION-937-5000-46 (4) ST235/80R 16” tires mounted on 8 bolt DUAL rim 
(Single axle units only) 

$ 125.00 $ 125.00

1 OPTION-937-5000-50 Steel weld on fenders for single axle with dual tires $ 225.00 $ 225.00

1 990-100274 2-1/2" Wallace Forge Pintle Hitch $ 0.00 $ 0.00

1 OPTION-980-5000-92 270 degree hydraulic controlled swivel discharge chute 
with manual 12" chip deflector (Includes height adjustable 
discharge)

$ 850.00 $ 850.00

1 OPTION-937-0501-31 Clean out and inspection door on transition $ 175.00 $ 175.00

1 OPTION-980-100028 Steel Weld On Chock Holders (Does not include chocks) $ 170.00 $ 170.00

1 OPTION-980-5001-03 Rubber Wheel Chocks (2) $ 90.00 $ 90.00

1 OPTION-905-5000-71 Hoop style cone holder (weld on) $ 295.00 $ 295.00

1 OPTION-955-5000-00 Hydraulic tongue jack with multiple position drop leg $ 1375.00 $ 1375.00

1 OPTION-915-5000-43 Gate Valve for Hydraulic Tank $ 130.00 $ 130.00

1 OPTION-980-100095 Shut- off valve for fuel tank $ 95.00 $ 95.00

1 OPTION-980-5000-94 Dinamic winch with line docking station with electronic 
joystick feed assist (Includes 5/16" diameter x 200' 
Samson Amsteel blue rope with HD thimble installed) 
(Includes (1) manual rear stabilizer unless dual rear 
hydraulic stabilizers are ordered)

$ 5850.00 $ 5850.00

1 OPTION-911-5000-21 Double Teeth (Bottom Feed Wheel) - (25" wide feed 
wheel)

$ 235.00 $ 235.00

1 OPTION-911-5000-16 4" x 6 1/2" inspection window on belt shield $ 125.00 $ 125.00

1 OPTION-915-5000-47 Spring Loaded Tool less Trap Door $ 250.00 $ 250.00

J - 3 - 5



Total Unit Price: $ 94306.73

Customer Discount: 12.0000 % - $ 11316.81

Customer Net Unit Price: $ 82989.92

Freight/Shipping: $ 900.00

Customer Total: $ 83889.92

CUSTOMER TOTALS 

COMMENTS 
By K & K Supply on 05/16/2019 08:38 AM 

SOURCEWELL CONTRACT 062117--BAN (4-1-2019) 

SIGNATURE 
The Buyer, whose name and address appears above, agrees to purchase from the Seller, whose name and address 
appears above, the above equipment at the prices stated and upon the terms and conditions of this agreement. 

X

Signature Date

Close Print

J - 3 - 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Agenda Item Cover 
 

 
MEETING DATE:  May 28, 2019  
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Bill No. 9370 - An ordinance designating a portion of the City of University 
City, Missouri, as a Redevelopment Area; approving the Olive Boulevard Commercial Corridor and 
Residential Conservation Redevelopment Plan, and making findings relating thereto. 
 
AGENDA SECTION:   Unfinished Business - Bills 
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 
 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:     
 
On August 23, 2018, the TIF Commission completed a public hearing and adopted a resolution 
recommending that the City Council adopt ordinances approving the Olive Boulevard Commercial Corridor 
and Residential Conservation Redevelopment Plan and the RPA 1, RPA 2 and RPA 3 Redevelopment 
Projects described therein. 
 
Based on the TIF Commission’s recommendation, four bills were introduced on November 12, 2018 – one 
approving the Redevelopment Plan and three approving the Redevelopment Projects for each RPA, as 
follows: 
 

• Bill No. 9370 to approve the Redevelopment Plan and designate the Redevelopment Area as a 
“redevelopment area” pursuant to the TIF Act 

 
• Bill No. 9371 to approve the RPA 1 Redevelopment Project and adopt tax increment financing within 

RPA 1, which is the mixed-use development proposed by Novus Development near the Olive 
Boulevard and I-170 interchange 

 
• Bill No. 9372 to approve the RPA 2 Redevelopment Project and adopt tax increment financing within 

RPA 2, which is the residential area north of Olive Boulevard 

 
• Bill No. 9373 to approve the RPA 3 Redevelopment Project and adopt tax increment financing within 

RPA 3, which is the Olive Boulevard commercial corridor 

 
On January 14, 2019, Bill No. 9379 was introduced to authorize the City to execute and enter into a 
Redevelopment Agreement with U. City, LLC and U. City TIF Corporation (both affiliated with Novus 
Development) regarding the redevelopment of RPA 1. 
 
The Redevelopment Plan provides for $70.5 million of TIF assistance for RPA 1 and approximately $15 
million of TIF assistance for RPA 2 and RPA 3. 
 
 
 L - 1 - 1



 
The Redevelopment Plan, which is Exhibit A to Bill No. 9370, has been revised to clarify that the maximum 
TIF assistance to the proposed developer for RPA 1 is $70.5 million.  To the extent the developer also funds 
redevelopment project costs in RPA 2 and RPA 3, additional TIF reimbursement may be available.  
 
In addition, various typographical and grammatical corrections have been made to the Redevelopment Plan.  
None of the revisions to the Redevelopment Plan affect the maximum TIF assistance available under the 
Redevelopment Plan, substantially affect the proposed land uses described in the Redevelopment Plan, or 
substantially change the nature of the redevelopment projects described in the Redevelopment Plan.  The 
Cost-Benefit Analyses (one for each RPA), which are attached as Exhibit C to Bill No. 9370, have been 
revised to correct errors made regarding the amount of taxes the City will receive from the general sales tax 
and the capital improvements sales tax and to make other updates, including potential adoption of TIF in 2019 
instead of 2018 and increasing the estimated value of certain parcels to reflect recent increases in the taxable 
value of commercial property in St. Louis County.  The text of Bill Nos. 9370, 9371, 9372 and 9373 has been 
revised to recognize the changes to the exhibits.  The changes to the text of the four Bills are redlined. 
 
After the introduction of Bill No. 9379, the parties negotiated various changes to the Redevelopment 
Agreement (Exhibit A) and the District Project Agreement (Exhibit B).  The changes are redlined. 
 
Complete copies of all five Bills and City Consultant Jonathan Ferry’s Report are posted on the Community 
Development Department’s Olive and I-170 TIF webpage. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The City Manager recommends approval. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Bill No. 9370, as amended. 

 

L - 1 - 2



L - 1 - 3



L - 1 - 4



L - 1 - 5



L - 1 - 6



L - 1 - 7



L - 1 - 8



L - 1 - 9



L - 1 - 10



L - 1 - 11



L - 1 - 12



L - 1 - 13



L - 1 - 14



L - 1 - 15



L - 1 - 16



L - 1 - 17



L - 1 - 18



L - 1 - 19



L - 1 - 20



L - 1 - 21



L - 1 - 22



L - 1 - 23



L - 1 - 24



L - 1 - 25



L - 1 - 26



L - 1 - 27



L - 1 - 28



L - 1 - 29



L - 1 - 30



L - 1 - 31



L - 1 - 32



L - 1 - 33



L - 1 - 34



L - 1 - 35



L - 1 - 36



L - 1 - 37



L - 1 - 38



L - 1 - 39



L - 1 - 40



L - 1 - 41



L - 1 - 42



L - 1 - 43



L - 1 - 44



L - 1 - 45



L - 1 - 46



L - 1 - 47



L - 1 - 48



L - 1 - 49



L - 1 - 50



L - 1 - 51



L - 1 - 52



L - 1 - 53



L - 1 - 54



L - 1 - 55



L - 1 - 56



L - 1 - 57



L - 1 - 58



L - 1 - 59



L - 1 - 60



L - 1 - 61



L - 1 - 62



L - 1 - 63



L - 1 - 64



L - 1 - 65



L - 1 - 66



L - 1 - 67



L - 1 - 68



L - 1 - 69



L - 1 - 70



L - 1 - 71



L - 1 - 72



L - 1 - 73



L - 1 - 74



L - 1 - 75



L - 1 - 76



L - 1 - 77



L - 1 - 78



L - 1 - 79



L - 1 - 80



L - 1 - 81



L - 1 - 82



L - 1 - 83



L - 1 - 84



L - 1 - 85



L - 1 - 86



L - 1 - 87



L - 1 - 88



L - 1 - 89



L - 1 - 90



L - 1 - 91



L - 1 - 92



L - 1 - 93



L - 1 - 94



L - 1 - 95



L - 1 - 96



L - 1 - 97



L - 1 - 98



L - 1 - 99



L - 1 - 100



L - 1 - 101



L - 1 - 102



L - 1 - 103



L - 1 - 104



L - 1 - 105



L - 1 - 106



L - 1 - 107



L - 1 - 108



L - 1 - 109



L - 1 - 110



L - 1 - 111



L - 1 - 112



L - 1 - 113



L - 1 - 114



L - 1 - 115



L - 1 - 116



L - 1 - 117



L - 1 - 118



L - 1 - 119



L - 1 - 120



L - 1 - 121



L - 1 - 122



L - 1 - 123



L - 1 - 124



L - 1 - 125



L - 1 - 126



L - 1 - 127



L - 1 - 128



L - 1 - 129



L - 1 - 130



L - 1 - 131



L - 1 - 132



L - 1 - 133



L - 1 - 134



L - 1 - 135



L - 1 - 136



L - 1 - 137



L - 1 - 138



L - 1 - 139



L - 1 - 140



L - 1 - 141



L - 1 - 142



L - 1 - 143



L - 1 - 144



L - 1 - 145



L - 1 - 146



L - 1 - 147



L - 1 - 148



L - 1 - 149



L - 1 - 150



L - 1 - 151



L - 1 - 152



L - 1 - 153



L - 1 - 154



L - 1 - 155



L - 1 - 156



L - 1 - 157



L - 1 - 158



L - 1 - 159



L - 1 - 160



L - 1 - 161



L - 1 - 162



L - 1 - 163



L - 1 - 164



L - 1 - 165



L - 1 - 166



L - 1 - 167



L - 1 - 168



L - 1 - 169



L - 1 - 170



L - 1 - 171



L - 1 - 172



L - 1 - 173



L - 1 - 174



L - 1 - 175



L - 1 - 176



L - 1 - 177



L - 1 - 178



L - 1 - 179



L - 1 - 180



L - 1 - 181



L - 1 - 182



L - 1 - 183



L - 1 - 184



L - 1 - 185



L - 1 - 186



L - 1 - 187



L - 1 - 188



L - 1 - 189



L - 1 - 190



L - 1 - 191



L - 1 - 192



L - 1 - 193



L - 1 - 194



L - 1 - 195



L - 1 - 196



L - 1 - 197



L - 1 - 198



L - 1 - 199



L - 1 - 200



L - 1 - 201



L - 1 - 202



L - 1 - 203



L - 1 - 204



L - 1 - 205



L - 1 - 206



L - 1 - 207



L - 1 - 208



L - 1 - 209



L - 1 - 210



L - 1 - 211



L - 1 - 212



L - 1 - 213



L - 1 - 214



L - 1 - 215



L - 1 - 216



L - 1 - 217



L - 1 - 218



L - 1 - 219



L - 1 - 220



L - 1 - 221



L - 1 - 222



L - 1 - 223



L - 1 - 224



L - 1 - 225



L - 1 - 226



L - 1 - 227



L - 1 - 228



L - 1 - 229



L - 1 - 230



L - 1 - 231



L - 1 - 232



L - 1 - 233



L - 1 - 234



L - 1 - 235



L - 1 - 236



L - 1 - 237



L - 1 - 238



L - 1 - 239



L - 1 - 240



L - 1 - 241



L - 1 - 242



L - 1 - 243



L - 1 - 244



L - 1 - 245



L - 1 - 246



L - 1 - 247



L - 1 - 248



L - 1 - 249



L - 1 - 250



L - 1 - 251



L - 1 - 252



L - 1 - 253



L - 1 - 254



L - 1 - 255



L - 1 - 256



L - 1 - 257



L - 1 - 258


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	2019-05-28 Council Packet Part 1.pdf
	E1 - 2019-05-09 Study Session - Draft Minutes Fair U City and FY20 Budget Presentation.pdf
	STUDY SESSION
	5th Floor of City Hall
	6801 Delmar
	May 9, 2019
	AGENDA
	Requested by the City Manager
	Terms of the Proposed Contract:
	Legal Considerations:
	Recommendations:
	 Authorize City Staff to Evaluate Hosting a Community Fair In FY2020 and provide Council with Reports on the Following Factors:
	FY20-FY24 Capital Improvement Budget
	Priorities
	CIP Summary:  FY20 - FY24
	The total amount allocated to City departments for the 5 year period is $25, 818,343.
	Highlights:  Fire Department
	Highlights:  Parks, Recreation & Forestry
	Highlights:  Police Department
	Highlights:  Planning & Development
	Highlights:  Public Works
	Next Steps:
	FY2019-FY2020 Proposed Annual Operating Budget
	Priorities
	The following priorities were established through last year's budget process.
	Organizational Structure
	Mr. Rose stated to ensure there are no inherent conflicts of interest and eliminate the perception that all requests may not be handled in the order they are received, he is recommending that Fleet Operations; a support operation for the entire organi...
	Residential Property Tax Bill
	Highlights - FY2020
	All Funds Summary - Governmental Funds
	Revenue Sources - All Funds
	Revenue Sources - Percentages
	General Fund - Revenue Sources
	General Fund Revenue Sources - Percentages
	General Fund - Transfers In
	General Fund - Transfers Out
	General Fund Expenditures
	General Fund Expenditures - Percentages
	General Fund Summary
	Highlights - City Manager's Office
	Highlights - Finance Department
	Highlights - Municipal Court
	Highlights - Fire Department
	Highlights - Public Works
	Highlights - Planning & Development
	Highlights - Parks, Recreation & Forestry
	Other Funds
	Summary - Public Safety Sales Tax Funds
	Summary - Park & Stormwater Fund
	Blank Page

	E2 - 2019-05-13 Study Session - EDRST Grant Guidelines and Crim Stats.pdf
	STUDY SESSION
	5th Floor of City Hall
	6801 Delmar
	May 13, 2019

	Public Hearing Cover Sheet Bill 9385 - Medical Marijuana.pdf
	CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? : Yes





